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Abaultha National Aodit Sffice
Mandate

The statutory mandate and responsibilities of the Controller and Auditor-General are provided
for under Article 143 of the Constitution of the United Republic of Tanzania of 1977 and in
Section 10 (1) of the Public Audit Act, Cap. 418.
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i This audit report is intended to be used by HESLE and may form part of the annual general
report, which once tabled to Mational Assembly, becomes & public document; hence, (ts
distribution may not be limited.,
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Abbreviations

AAHEFA Association of African Higher Education Financing
Agencies

AIDS hequired Immune Deficiency Syndrome

ARC audit and Risk Committee

Bol Board of Directors

Dikis Digital Disbursement System

ED Erecutive Director

ECL Expected Credit Loss

e=-GhA a-Government Authority

EIR Effective Interest Rate

EUL Ectimated useful life

EXCOM Executive Management Committee

FPA Finance, Planning and Administration

GAS Grand Automation & System Integration

GePG Government electronic Payment Gateway

GAVF Generally Acceptable Valuation Principles

GovESE Government Enterprise Service Bus

ICT |nformation Communication Technology

iLMS Integrated Loan Management Systern

IPSAS International Public Sectars Accounting Standards

HEET Higher Education for Economic Transformation

HESLEB Higher Education students’ Loans Board

HIV Hurnan Immunodeficiency Yirus

HLi= Higher Learning Institutions

KPls Key Performance Indicakors

LARC |nan and Repayment Committee
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OLAMS Online Loan Application and Management System
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FAYE Pay as You Earn
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1.0 INDEPEMDENT REPORT OF THE CONTROLLER-AND AUDITOR GEMERAL

Chairman of the Board of Directors,
Higher Education 5tudents’ Loans Board,
P.O. Box 76068,

Dar-Es-5alaam.

1.1 REPORT OM THE AUDIT OF FINAHCIAL STATEMENTS
Unqualified Opinion

| have audited the financial statements of Higher Education Students’ Loans Board, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2024, and the statement of
financial performance, statement of changes in net assets and cash flow statement and the
statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, as well as
the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly in all material respects,
the financial position of Higher Education Students’ Loans Board as at 30 June 2024, and its
financial performance and its cash flows for the wear then ended in accordance with
International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) Accrual basis of accounting and the
manner required by the Public Finance Act, Cap, 345,

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit Institutions
(1554ls). My responsibilities under those standards are described in the section below entitled
“Responsibilities of the Controller and Auditor General for the Audit of the Financial
Statements”. | am independent of Higher Education Students’ Loans Board in accordance with
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (|ESBA Code) together with the Hational Board of Accountants and Auditors
(MBAA) Code of Ethics, and | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements,

I believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most
significance in my audit of the financial statements of the current perigd. | have determined
that there are no key audit matters to communicate in my report.

Cantroller and Auditor General AR/PASHESLBS2023/724



Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Report by those charged with Governance, statement of management responsibility and
Declaration by the Head of Finance but does not include the financial statements and my
audit report thereon which | obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information, and | do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing %o, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed on the other information that | obtained prior to the
date of this audit report, | conclude that there {5 a material misstatement of this other
information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with IP5AS, and for such intermal control 25 management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the entity's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concermn basis of accounting unless management either intends (o
liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the entity's financial reporting
process.

Responsibilities of the Controller and Auditor General for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstabement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
audit report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 155Als will always detect a
material misstatemnent when 1t exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic declsions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

Controller and Auditor General AR/PAHESLE 2023/24



As part of an audil in accordance with 185Als, | exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, | also:

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for
my opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. '

« Obtain an understanding of internal centrol relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
eXpressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control,

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concemn basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity's
ability to continue as a going concern. if | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, |
am required to draw attention in my audit report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, If such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a going
COMCErm.

=« [valuate the owverall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in intermal control that | identify during my audit.

| also provide those charged with governance with a statement that | have complied with
relevant ethical reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, | determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
peried and are therefore the key audit matters. | describe these matters in my audit report
untess law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, | determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report

Controller and Auditor General AR/PASHESLE/2023/24



because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public Interest benefits of such communication.

In addition, Section 10 (2) of the Public Audit Act, Cap 418 requires me to satisfy myself that,
the accounts have been prepared in accordance with the appropriate accounting standards.

Further, Secticn 48(3) of the Public Procurement Act, Cap 410 reguires me to state in my
annual audit report whether or not the audited entity has complied with the procedures
prescribed in the Procurement Act and its Regulations. -

1.2 REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH LEGISLATIONS
1.2.1 Compliance with the Public Procurement laws
Subject matter: Compliance audit on procurement of works, goods and services

I performed a compliance audit on procurement of works, goods and services in the Higher
Education Students' Loans Board for the financial year 2023/24 as per the Public Procurement
laws.

Conclusion

Based on the audit work performed, | state that, except for the matters described below,
procurement of goods, works and services of Higher Education Students' Loans Board is
generally in compliance with the requirements of the Public Procurement laws.

Powers of Attorney Certified by Ungqualified Persons

Section 39 of The Advocates Act (R.E 2002) prescribes the qualifications for practicing as an
advocate. Subject to the provisions of section 3, no person shall be gualified to act as an
acvacate unless: (a) Their name 5 on the Roll, {b) They have a valid practicing certificate,
and {c) They hold a valid business license.

Reviews of the evaluation procedures for tenders number TR112/2023/24/G/06,
TR112/2023/24/G/19 and TR112/2023/24/G/33 noted that the submitted standard powers of
attorney were notarized by unqualified persons who hold invalid business licenses and name s
nok in roll.

1.2.2 Compliance with the Budget Act and other Budget Guidelines
Subject matter: Budget formulation and execution

| performed a compliance audit on budget formulation and execution in the Higher Education
Students” Loans Board for the financial year 2023724 as per the Budget Act and other Budget
Guidelines.

Controller and Auditor General AR/PASHESLE/2023/24



Conclusion

Based on the audit work performed, | state that Budget formulation and execution of Higher
Education Students® Leans Board is generally in compliance with the requirements of the Budget
Act and other Budget Guidelines,

.

: ."..':::';" - J
Charles E. Kichere
Controller and Auditor General,

Dodoma, United Republic of Tanzania.
March 2025
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"% . HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD

2.0 REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNACE FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30
JUNE 2024 .

7.1 INTRODUCTION

The Higher Education &tudents' Loans Board (HESLB) is 2 corporate body established by the
Higher Education students' Loans Board Act No. g of 2004 {as amended) CAP 178 (HESLE Act).
¢ has been in operation since July 2005. Currently, HESLE is under the Ministry of Education,
Science and Technology. Its main objective is to assist, on & loan basis, eligible students
admitted to accredited higher learning institutions but whose families cannot afford to
support them fully or partly. HESLE is also mandated to issue grants. In addition, HESLB Iz
charged with the mandate of collecting all due mature lpans fram previous loan beneficiaries
since 1994 onwards. Therefore, it is an institution Lranslating the cost sharing policy in the
higher education financing.

The Board of Directors of the Higher Education Students’ Loans Board submits its Annual
Financial Report for the financial year ended 30 Jupe 2024, which discloses HESLB's state of
affairs for the period, The Report has peen prepared in accordance with the provistons of Sect
75(4) of the Public Finance Act. Cap 348 [R.E. 2020] and complies with Tanzania Financial
Reporting Standard No. 1 (TFRS 1).

2.2  OFFICE LOCATIONS

HESLE has head office in Dodoma, subhead office in Dar es salaam and seven zonal Dffices
\acated arcund the United Republic of Tanzania as follaws; -

i, Head Difice is located at PSSSF House, Makole Road in Dodama
i, Sub Head Office is lacated at Kilimo Street, TAZARA Area in Dar es halaam,
iii. Tanzibar Office is located at ZSSF Michenzani Mall, Michenzani Area in Zanzibar
Urban/West,
sv.  Lake Zone located at PS55F Plaza huflding, Kenyatta Road in Mwarza,
w. MNorthermn Zone 15 located at MS5F Mafan House in Arusha,
vl. Southern Highland Zone located at CAG building, Mbalizi Road in Mbeya,

vii. Southern Zone located at MHC Raha Leo Complex in Mtwara and
viil. Eastern Lone located at PSSSF Tower, along Mission Street in Dar es 5alaam.

2.3 VISION, MISSION, CORE VALUES AND PRINCIFAL ACTIVITIES

Wision

Ta become a reliable and custainable tertiary sducation ctudent financier in Tanzania.

Controller and Auditor General AR/PA/MHESLB/ID23/24



7" IGHER EOUCATION STUDENTS’ LOANS BOARD

Mission

To sustainably manage the issuance of tertiary education loans and grants to eligibie
Tanzanian students and loan collection by embracing innovaticn, a skilled workforce, and

SYTErgies
Caore Yalues

To achieve the vision and mission, HESLB and sther stakeholders have observed the following
guiding core valuas:

i, Accountability
fi. Customer-centric
fii. Teamwork
v, Professionalism
v,  Innovation
vi,  Equity

Principal Activities of HESLB
As prescribed under the HESLB Act, the principal HESLE activities include:

Assuming responsibility for the control and managemeant of all loanable funds as vested in the
Board;

Farmulating the mechanism for determining eligible students for payment of loans together
with administering and supervising the whole process of payment and repayment of loans;

Keeping register and ather records of students’ loan beneficiaries under the Board; and

Advising the Minister on matLers of policy and of the law cancerning provisions and recovery
of loans granted.

2.4 CORPORATE GOVERNAMNCE

The Board of Directors is responsible for the governance of the Higher Education Students’
Loans Board to comply with the law, standards of corporate governance, and business ethics.
The Board takes overall responsibility for the running of the board, including effective and
efficient  implementation of various activities, monitorng pperations and investment
decisions, considering significant financial matters, and reviewing the performance aof
management plans and budgets.

The Board e also responsible for identifying key risk areas and ensuring that a system of
snternal control policies and procedures is operative and in compliance with sound corporate
govemance principles. The Board believes in the principles of Corporate Governance that
include transparency, accountability, probity and respect for the rights of all its stakeholders.

Cantroller and Auditor General AR/PAMHESLE/2023/24



Ty HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD

Therefore, the Board continued to enforce good corporate gOVErnance practices by mainly
jocusing on regulations, compliance and professionalism a5 an integral part of the operations
rowards better govarnance.

2.5 COMPOSITION, FUNCTION AND POWERS OF THE BOARD
7.5.1 Composition of the Board

The President appoints a Chairman of the Board, who serves a four-year tenure renewable,
whereas the Minister for Educatien, Science, and Technology appoints other members for
three years, rencwable once, Members appointed by the Minister represent various key
constituencies in the higher education financing ecosystem euch as tertiary education
regulators (Tanzania commissian for Universities {TCU) and Hational Cauncil for Technical and
vocational Education Training (HACTVET)) Mintstries of Education {both Tanzania Mainland
and Tanzania Zanzibar); Ministries of Finance (both Tanzania Mainland and Tanzania
Fanzibar); Office of the Attormey General and a representative of higher education students.

It may be recalled that accarding to HESLE Act, the Board of Directors may co-opt amy person
to seat in the Board or any of its committee, but at no single point In time the co-opted
member can enjoy voting rights.

3 5.7 Functions of the Board
i. To assume responsibility for the control and management of all loanable funds as
vested in the Board;

. To formulate the mechanism for determining eligible students for payment of loans;

§ii.  To administer and supervise the whole process of granting, repayment and recavery of
loans issued to students;

v,  Tokeep the register and other recards aof students’ loan beneficiaries under the Board;

v. To advise the Minister on matters of policy and of the law concerning provisions and
recovery of loans to students;

.  To establish operational links between the Board and higher education institutions
with student lsan beneficiaries for facilitating a smaoth, efficient and effective
administration of the loan funds;

wli,  To establish operational links with employers of loan heneficiaries for the purpose of
facilitating the recovery of the loans granted;

viii. To establish netwarking and cooperation links on a mutually beneficial basts with
institutions and organizations, be they governmental or non-governmental, local,
foreign or international;

&, To conduct research and maintain a data bank on other local and external
scholarships, sponsorships and awards that may be arcessed by Tanzanian students in
need or in search of opportunities and financial sponsorship or asmstance for higher
education and/or training;

«  To ensure the overall efficient and effective implementation af the provisions of the
Act and of any such other wntten law concerning Government loans; and

Controller and Auditor General AR/PA/HESLE/2023/24
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To perform such nther functions as are canferred upon the Board by or under the ACt
or any other written Laws.

2.5.3 Powers of the Board

Withaout prejudice to section & of the HESLE Act Cap 178, the Board shall have oweTs;-

1.
i.

.

wil.

1x,

%is

=i,

wiii.

To administer both movable and immovabie properties of the Board;
To administer the funds, sinvestments and assets of the Board and in particular the -
funds allocated under the Government Budget or stherwise available for loans o
students;

Ta borrow maney for any purpose deemed fit by the Bnard and, subject to any Law in
relation to investment of funds by a trustes, ko invest in land and or Government
Securities or other interest-bearing assets <uch fund as may be vested in it and which
may not be immediately required for current expenditure;

To signify the acls of the Board by use of official seal in the manner provided for
under the Schedule;

To demand and recefve quch fees for services rendered by officers and other
employees of the Board;

To receive and consider all students loan applications from eligible students wishing to
he considered for the award of loans;

Ta grant loan moneys L0 students who have been granted such loans in accordance
with the provisions of she Act or regulations made hereunder or in furtherance
thereof;

Ta determine other critefia and conditions governing the granting of students’ loan
including the rates of interest and recovery of loans;

To determine the maxirmum number of eligible students to be granted loans in any o
particular year;

To recover all loan MoNeyYs owed by former student \nan beneficiaries since July, 1994
under the Students Loan fram or with the assistance of their respective employers oF
otherwise in accordance with the provisions of this act and regulations made there
under;

To appoint, settle the Lerms and conditions of service of cerminate the appeintment of
such employes of the Board as it 15 empowered Lo appoint under this Act as it may
deam NECessary,

To declde and of recomnmend conditions of service and emplayment packages for the
employees and or the officers of the Board and 1o approve o, a5 the case may be,
recommend staff sctablishment and staff development plans prepared by management
within the financial resources of the Board;

To establish divisions of sub-divistons or disestablish any one of them and give them
any such designation or designations as it may deem fit;

controller and Auditar General AR/PA/MHESLE/2023/24
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Table 1:Baard of Direciors wha served during the period
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HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS’ LOANS BOARD
L

To make arrangements or provisions for health, pension, superannuation and or other
terminal benefits for 15 afficers or other employees in accordance with any written
law applicable to public servants;

To consider and approve the annual budget submitted BY the management for the
purpeses of monitoring and reviewing financial statements and authorizing major
expenditures for the Board;

To formulate and implement Board financial policies;

To enter into contracks or memaranda of understanding with the Ministry, individuals,

and other organizations or institutions, establish such trusts, and appoint such |

trustees, agents, and independent contrackors a5 may be.

Full Hame Shatus ﬁﬁm scademic Disciptine | Mationality ~ Appointed
" . FhD (Agricultural : December
prof. Hamisi 0. Dihengs Chalrpersain 74 E eriimg] Tarzanian 207
Ph.D, in Baminess
D, Rulckays W. Wice Management {Human :
puhammed Chalrperson - Rigsourod Tarzamian Sept-2013
Management},
| D, Telemu J. Hassike Member B3 Phi in Econamics Tanzanian tepl-2021
| Dr. Martin J. Chegers Memriar b1 Phil in Econommics Tanzanian Sapt- 2023
Mr, Twaha A, Twaha Mermber 54 ﬁ"“‘”‘“at“’““ i | TIPERNS
nas
MEe (Economics) B A Sept- 2023
58 T wambes 52 {Econamic Policy Tanzanian
) Managemant]
Ms. Maria John Thomas | Bachelor of Arts with Sept-20L3
Mamber a7 Education [BAED] Tanzankan
Master of Laws (LLM} Sept-2023
::;;“Im d: Mamber 4 in Corparats and Tanzankan
| gk E,::-rrme_n:ial Laws
M. 1adi K, Hali Nanibier &1 pGD (Financial Tanzanian Sepl-2HLA

Management)

souwrce; HESLE Board of Directors’ Reports

7.5.4 Matters deliberated in board of directors’ meetings

During the reporting period, the Board of Directors held all its four statutory meetings to
discuss and deliberate on various strategic and compliance tesues Some of the notable
deliberations during the year included the following,

it

v,

Controfier and Auditor General

Approved 2023/24 Boad of Director meeting almanac. The almanac guided its
subsequent meetings, which we are glad to report, wWers convened as planned,
Received and deliberated on guarterly performance reports from its respective
Commitiess,

Welcoming new Board Members; Appointed Vice-Chairperson, and Formed Board
Committees,

Approved the annual Procurement Plan Review for Financial Year 2023-2024,

Approved the proposal for Mid-year Budget reallocation for Financial Year 2023-2024,

AR/PAJHESLB/2023/24
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vi. FReceived and Delibarated on the Executive Director's Mid-Year Performance Repart
(2023-2024),
vii.  Appraved Mid-Year Beview of the Annual Procurement lan far Financial Year 2023/24,
viil.  Appreved the proposal for Changes on Bank Accounts Signatories,
. Approved the Recast of the 2024/2025 HESLE Budget,
x. Approved the request far the DC Budget adjustments between cost centers, and
xi. Approved of the Annual Procurement Plan for the Fin ancial Year 2024/2013.

Members Participated in Board of Directors meetings held are as shown in table below

_Table 2: Board of Directors meetings held during the year

| e Ho. af meetings attended against
SN Hame Designation | uf:upffn; | ~__ planned
! | 1023524 | 1022733
Prof, Hamisi O. Fend BhD (Agricultural | . 5%
! | phenga [t B . |
| Ph.0. i Business \Was not yet appointed
5 | Dr. Rukkaya W. Yice Managament | 576
pubarmmetd Chatrperson | (Human Resource |
= ”_ﬂl‘ﬂ.!c‘nlEht}. | -
3 | Dr. Telesmu J, kassite | Member [F’th Econombes I BB -~ Was not yet appointed
4 | Dr. Martin J. Chegere |r Mambar PhD in Economics 5/6 | Was not yet appainted
5 [ Wr. Twiha A, Twaha e ﬁ;l:jt:mathna‘l | 516 | was ot yet appointed
; 3 | i | W5c (Econoemics) & ezt 4/5
Ws, Theresia E. M (Economic |
B | Henjewels e Policy 516 |
=y | | Managerment) | !
Mz, Maria John Bachelar ef Aris Was rot yet appainted
7 | Thomas | Member | with Education | BB
I I : } .
N o I'-:-aﬁter of Laws | Was not yet appainted
. Pantina 1. f b {LLM) in Corporate
8 - Mwalusaknya | E and Commercial s
A | PGD (Financial ! 5
9 | Mr. lodi K. Hail | Memiar H;hw;:ﬂ“j i 546 3f
1

Source: HESLE Board of Directors” Reparts

2.6 COMMITTEES OF THE HESLB GOVERMING BOARD

Ear the smooth operation of the functions of the Board of Directors,
Committees from among its me
various functions, The current Committess, as reflected in both the HESLB het
and Repayment Committee (LARC), the
and the Audit and Risk Committee

the Board to form not more than three

af Directors Charter, are the Loans Allocation
Finance, Planning and Administration Committee {FPAL,

the HESLE Act mandates
mbers to discharge
and the Board

(ARC). All Committees report to the Board of Directors quarterly or as the need may arise,

| rontrolier and Auditor General
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2.6.1 Loans Allocation and Repayment Committes: {LARC)

The primary function for which HESLB was pctablished is the fssuance of loans and grants to
eligible students and to ensure repayment of matured loans. The primary ohjective of
astablishing LARC is to discharge this core function of HESLE. The Committee is entrusted
with full-fledged decision-making powers on all jssues related to the allocation and recovery
of students’ loans and cuch decisions are normally tabled to the full Board for noting.

| PGD (Financial

1 | pir. Nl K. Haji I{h:rirpermn Sk nt) [ 57
2 :;.\:amahn A Membt | MBA-Intemational Business | 77| Was not yet appointed
| e ] | L i o | - ;
Ms. Maria John Bachelor of Arts with ' | Was not yet appeinted
3 | Thomas | Me™®" | ducation [BAED] AL _
4 Era.slfelemu & samiber | BhD in B - | o7 | Was not yet appeinted

Source: HESLE Committees’ Reports

The activities performed by this committes ensured close monitoring af loan allecations,
disbursement, and repayment. it also reviewed and endarsed various operational manuals
guiding Management on loan processing, disbursement, repayment, and recovery. The
following are matters deliberated in LARC committee meetings;
i. Received and deliberated performance quarter reporis on loans allocation and
dishursement,
ji. Received and deliberated quarter performance reports on loan repayment and
recovery,
§ii.  Approved the request {or Allocations of Loans and Grants far FY 2023724,
. Approved the Proposal to Use the Unutitized Funds fram Dropout Students and
v.  Approved the Proposed Guidelines for Issuance of Loans and Grants for the Academic
Year 2024/2025.

7.6.2 Finance, Planning and Administration Committee (FPA)

According to the HESLB Board Charter, the FFA Committee is responsible for dealing with
various suppert functions such as finance, budgeting, legal affairs, procurement management,
ICT, communication, human resources, and administration, The Committee is mandated to
aversee the performance of support Directorates and Units as well as scrutinizing and
endorsing the Annual procurement Plan, annual budget, budget recast, and re-allocation,
among other key support functions.

Controller and Auditor Genaral ARJPAHESLBAZ023/24



Table 4: The composition of the FPA commitiee during the year

L o o .HI:"&HE.H EDUCATION STUDENTS LOANS BOARD

Ho. of meetings attended against

S | Hami | Designation Academic Discipline | : planned =
| Current Year | Previous Year
i Twaha A, Twaha = MB&-Internationsl . | Was not yet
Xk e T Chairper=0f | pusiness 474 l appainted
' ' Ph.D. in E-u':mm| | Wasnot yet
| Management (Human [ appointed
|
7 | Dr, Ruskaya W. Muhammed i Member | Resource ! 374
- - | Mansgemen). IRy
M. Paulina J. Mwalusanya | Memnber Master of Laws {LLM) 414 Was. not yet
k. | in Corporate  and | appointed
s [ | Commercial Laws | |
M. PauiR. Bilabaye | Msrber - co- | CPA(T), CPSP, MBA | or4 | Wasnotyetco-
4 opted Corporate | {Appointed in opted
| BB e i M, T —
: Prof. Joel 5. Mebe Mepriber - Co- | Ph.DLin Interactive | Y [,a.,pminted Was not yet co-
5 apted | Technalogy MHuman in Q3.) | opted
[ Camputer [ |
| Interaction

Courree: HESLE Commitlees” Repars

The meetings held by this Committes ensured close moniLoning of budget implementation as

approved by the Gavernment and the BoD.

It further ensures compliance with various laws

and regulations relating to procurement, finance, public service, and budget, The Commitlee

alen ensures various internal Policies and manuals are developed, 1

eviewed and approved as

appropriate. The following are matiens deliberated in FPA eommittee meetings;

i, Received Management performance quarter reparts,

., Received updates on the Higher Education for Economic Transformation (HEET}

project,
iii. Received updates on the Dodoma HQ Office project,

. Endorsed the Proposal for Mid-Year Review of the Annual Procurement Plan for

Financial Year 2023/24 and
v. Endorsed the Proposed Changes on Bank Accolmts Signatories

2.6.3 Audit and Risk Committee (ARC)

The ARC performs an oversight function on behalf of the Board of Directors as stipulated

under the Audit Charter.

The Terms of Reference for the Audit and Risk Committee cover six major areas, namely,
Internal Control, Financial Reporting, Internal Audit, External Audit, Compliance and Risk

panagement.

ARC mandate under Internal Control covers
culture: the adequacy of the internal control systems and comp

the evaluation of contral emvironment and
liance with International

Public Sector ACcounting crandards (IPSAS) in the preparation of financial statements; the
averall effectiveness of the internal control and risk management framework: The Committee

Contrailer and auditor General
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also reviews the sffectiveness of the system for-meonitoring compliance with laws and
regulations.

The mandate relating to Finarcial Reporting requires the Audit Committee to review
significant accounting and reporting policies and standards and their impact on the f inancial
reports to ensure that risks are managed appropriately. The Committes ensures the adequacy
of the financial reporting process and reviews the Board's annual accounts before approval
and adoption by the full Board.

Regarding External Audits, the Audit and Risk Committee reviews and approves the external

auditors’ proposed audit wcope, approach, and audit deliverables, draft financial statements
hefore submission to the External Auditars for audit, and also reviws and approves the
proposed audit fee. Compliance task entails ensuring that HESLE complies with laws, rules,
and regulations governing its operations. Risk management involves the identification of risks
and ensuring that those mitigating measures ars in place and are operating efficiently and
effectively.

The Committes’s mandate on Irternal Audit covers a review of the activities and resources of
the internal audit function; effectiveness, standing, and independence of internal audit
function within HESLB; review of the internal audit plan; and follow-up on the
implementation of internal audit findings and recommendations.

Table 5:The compasition of the ARC committee during the year

Mo. of meetings attended
against planned

Ehﬂ'feni':' i
Year Previous Year

| F; Academic L

5/H ! Hame Designation Discipline ‘

| | MSc (Econemics) |

1 | Me. Theresia E. Henjewele | Member | Eﬂ”‘:y‘&“""”‘c | 55 | WA not yet appointed
: ! Management)

| Ph.D. in Business

| Management | 505 Was not yet appointed

(Himan Resource |

Managemeant |

Ph.D. in

Econamics

CPA(T), CP5F,
MEA Corporate | 375

| Management |

I
7 | Dr, Rukkaya W. Muhammed | Member

Was not yet appainted

3 | Dr. Martin J. Chegere | Member | 5(5

AT - . Was not yet co-opted

F | Mr. Paul B Eilﬂhﬂw mnp{tﬂ

Cource: HESLE Commiliees’ Repodts

In addition to approving the Internal Audit Plan, the committee closely followed up on the
implementation of both internal and external audit findings, thus contributing to a significant
reduction of audit queries. The following are matters deliberated in ARC committee

meetings;
i Recelved and discussed the performance quarter reports of the Internal Audit and
Inwestigation,

Controller and Auditor General ARPAMESLE 2023734
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ii. Received and discussed the implementation status of PAC directives on the
performance audit report for 2021/2021,

. Recelved and discussed the Risk Treatment quarter reports,

fv. Received and discussed the Fraud Risk Treatment quarter reports,

v, Approved the proposed internal audit ricks-based annual weork plan far the financial
year 2024/25,

vi. Received and deliberated on the controller and auditor general’s financial and
compliance audit report far the financial year ended 30th June 2023; and

vii. Received and deliberated the audit repott regarding the management of higher -

education students’ loans repayment 2024
2.7 RESOURCES AND STREMGTH

Resources and strengths that facilitate the HESLR's endeavour in achieving its strategic
ohjectives include; humman resources, financial resources, technological resources, capital
assets, good relationship agset and, strategic resources.

7.7.1 Human resources

In terms of human capital, HESLE has well-qualified, experienced and committed staff
dedicated to a long-term career in HESLB. The management maintains continuous training
programmes ko its <taff to keep them abreast with social, economic and development issues
apound the world, Likewise, the management adheres Lo good governance and promotes
labour relations. During the period under review HESLB achieved 102% of manning level with
787 employees compared to 264 employees of last financial year. Employees’ turnaver stood
at 1.2% which range less than a tolerable turnover 10-15%; Majority of Staff are young adults

ranging 30-39 years of age.
2.7.1 Financial resources

in terms of financial resources, HESLE finance its operations by own S0UTCE incame and
government subrvention.

Own source income

Owr spuUrce income comprises of loan application fee, loan administration fee and emplayers’
penalty for Late remittance of loan deductions.

Loan application fee increased by 51% from TZ5 1 029,271,700 of last financial year to TZs
4.569,952,651 of the current financial year.

Loan administration fee increased by 13% from TI5 £,340,538,943 af last financial year to
TZS 7,276,102,156 of the current financial year and

Employers' penalty for jate remittance of loan deductions increased by 454% from TIS
23,545,469 of last financial year to TZ> 130,379,247 of the current financial year.

Controller and Auditer General ARFPAJHESLB/Z023/24
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Gavernment subvention

Gavernment  subvention comprise of Subvention Other Charges, Subvention Capital,
Government Grant pevelopment Local (Samia Scholarship), Government Grant Development
Foreign and Government Grant Personal Emoturnent.

subvention Other Charges increased by 64% from TZS 12,120,000,000 of Last financial year to
775 19, 855,390,000 of the current financial year.

subvention Capital maintained the same as of the last financial year, that's TI5*

5,000,000,000

Government Grant Development Lacal (Samia Scholarship) increased by 146% from TI5
2,377,845,975 of last financial year to TZ5 5,844 067,172 of the current financial year.

Government Grant Development Foreign increased by 12% from TZ5 3,714,326,735 of last
financial year to TI5 4,165,950,668 of the current financial year and

Government Grant pPersanal Emolument increased by 32% from TI5 6,427,995,096 of last
financial year to TZ5 8, 484 664,100 of the current financial year.

Finance to Students’ loans depends 100% on Funds Received for lssuing Loans from the
Government of United Republic of T anzania and Students’ Loan Repayment & Recovery.

Funds Received for lssuing Loans decreased by &% from TIS 689,897,135,850 of last financial
year to TZ5 446.280,561,748 of the current financial year.

students’ Loan Repayment & Recovery increased by 4% from TI5 167,431 439,321 of last
financial year to TI5 173,711,737 ,881 of the current financial year.

HESLE also maintain liguid assets in form of current assets in order to meet jts immediate
financial obligations and cperating expenses. Current Assets value has decreased by 17% in
comparison to last financial year from TZ5 316,375,663,491 to T75 761,045,858,065.

2.7.3 Technological resource

On technalogical side, HESLE has made significant efforts of adopting maodern technology 1o
improve its day-te-day pperations, HESLE has autamated maost of its operations in order to
enhance efficiency and affectiveness in service delivery. To attain this, HESLB has developed
internal software for easier facilitation of our operations. HESLE has made significant progress
in digital transformation, implementing the Students Individual Permanent Account (3IPA],
Digital Disbursement splution (0dDiS), Student finance model (5FM) for processing students’
payment, Employer Portal (EPO), compliance portal(COPO) for compliance administration,
Refund portal{iREPO} for refund management and Loanees individual Payment Account (LIPA)
for individual loans repayments, slectranic Document Management System(eDMS) for imprest,
leave, staff loans and other applications for internal users. Enhanced MUSE and e-office Lo

Contredler and Audfitor General AR/PATHESLES2023/24
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align it with HESLE Business Processes. These-systems nave revolutionized the loan
application, disbursement, and recovery processes, enhanced efficiency and minimizing
complaints.

7.7.4 Capital assets

HESLB capital assets comprise of Property, Plant and Equipment PPE that are employed in
day-to-day operaticns. The tangible items of PPEs are measured at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses while intangible is measured at cost less accumulated

amortisation and impairment Losses.

HESLE capital assets comprise of tangible and intangible assets amployed in the day-to-day
operations over a long pericd. The tangible assets measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses while intangible assets measured at cost less accumulated
armortisation and impairment losses.

During the period under review, HESLE maintained capital assets In form of Property, Plant
and Eaquipment, Work in Progress and Intangible Assets worth of TI5 7,434,237,683,
11,104,792,377 and 534,379,080 respective.

There is an increase of 53% in capital assets for the current financial period compared to
capital assets of last financial year, which maintained Property, Plant and Equipment, Work in
Progress and Intangible Assets warth of TZ5 5,308,698, 500; 6,814,404,%69 and 353,479,599
respectively.

2.7.5 Good relationship asset

HESLE maintains good relationship with stakeholders as an important resource, its
stakeholders include Higher Learning Institutions, sister organizations under the parent
Ministry of Education, Science and Technology, strategic partners, Higher Learning students
and Leaderships and general public.

HESLB also maintains good relationship and implement government poticy on loans to students
and maintain proper mechanism for loan repayment and recovery that contribute ta reliable
and sustainable higher educatien revolving fund.

2.7.6 Strategic resources

Eram ite strategic perspective, HESLB enhances its financial sufficlency by impraving
management of Its resources through prioritization and implementation of initiatives within
the available financial envelope and prudently managing ils spurces of income.

Controller and Auditor General ARPASHESLES 202324
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2.8 STRATEGIC PLAN

The Higher Education Students' Loans Board has a five-year Strategic Plan (2022713 -
2026/27) which envisages 10 realize the nine strategic objectives. The Strategic Plan provides
detailed strategies for each shjective across shori-term, medium-term, and long-term
horizons. Below are the strategies far the strategic objectives as highlighted in the Strategic
Plan:

7.8.1 Reduce Hon-Communicable Diseases and HIV/AIDS Infections and Improve Support

Services
Short-Term Strategies:

Conduct awarensess programs on non-communicable and communicable diseases.
Initiate workplace sports and bananzas to promote health.

medium-Term Strategies:

Pravide care and support to staff Living with HIV/AIDS.
Organize at least 10 awarensss programs and 20 sports activities by mid-plan.

Long-Term Strategies:

Establish continuous health and wellness services for staff.

7.8.2 Enhance, Implement, and Sustain National Anti-Corruption Strategy
short-Term Strategies:

Conduct anti-Corruption awareness programs.
Strengthen the integrity committees within the organization.

Medium-Term Strategies:

Regularly convene Integrity committee meetings (target: 13 reatings by 2007).
Long-Term Strategies:

Ernhed anti-corruption values within institutional culturs.

2.8.3 Improve Working Facilities, Staff Capacity, Welfare, and Infrastructure
Short-Term Strategies:

Provide essential tools and facilities for efficient working environments.
Conduct short and long courses far staff development.

Controller and Auditor Genaral ARPAMHESLBAZ0RE 24
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Medium-Term Strategies:

Canstruct a new office in Dodama and improve infrastruckure in other regions.
Ensure staff welfare services and inclusiveness.

Long-Term Strategies:

Implement and monitor a robust successian plan for staff.

2.8.4 Mobilize and Diversify Financial Sources

short-Term Strategies:

Enhance loan recovery through inspections and tracing of benaficiaries.
Medium-Term Strategies:

Establish diversified financial sources such as private-sector collaborations.
Long-Term Strategies:

Ensure financial custainability through innovative revenus streams.

2.8.5 Increase Access to Loans and Grants

Short-Term Strategies:

Simplify the loan application process and improve loan dishursement timelines.
Medium-Term Strategies:

Review and enhance the Means Testing Mechanism.
Expand eligibility eriteria for marginalized groups.
Expand financing scope (Diploma students financing).
Review Loan Hems.

Long-Term Strategies:

Achieve a significant increase in the nurmber of students supported
2 8.6 Improve Public Awareness, Compliance, and Collaboration
$hort-Term Strategies:

Conduct public awareness campaigns an loan repayment and compliance.
Hold consultations and partnerships with stakeholders.

Controller and Auditor General AR/PA/HESLB/2013/24
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Long-Term Strategies:

Establish enduring collaborations for enhanced compliance.

2.8.7 Increase Customer Satisfaction

Short-Term Strategies:

Address customer complaints promptly.

pedium-Term Strategies:

Enhance CRM systems and introduce efficient customer feedhack Loofps.
Long-Term Strategies:

Jaintain high satisfaction scores through continuous sarvice quality improvements.
7.8.8 Maintain a Cost-Effective Organization and Increase Operational Efficiency
short-Term Strategies:

Automate internal processes and improve ICT infrastructure.

Conduct regular reviews of budgets and plans.

Medium-Term Strategies:

Conduct business process mapping te ac hieve 150 certification
Long-Term Strategies:

Integrate full disaster recavery and business continulty measures.
2.8.9 Strengthen Corporate Governance and Performance Culture
short-Term Strategies:

Train Board members and strengthen governance structures.
Medium-Term Strategies:

Implement a performance-based gvaluation system.

Long-Term strategies:

Build a high-performance arganizational cultura through robust accountability meechanisms.

Cantroller and Auditar General AR/PAHESLB/2023/24
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Each strategy fs part of a structured timeline ensuring alignment with HESLE"s mission and
national development goals.

1.9 HESLB OPERATING MODEL

HESLE operating model 15 a visual representation of how an organization delivers value to its
internal and external customers. The board operate under faur line divistons and three
functional sections, these are Loans Allocation and Dishursement division, Loans Repayment
and Recovery division, Finance and Administration division, Planning, Research and WT
division, Internal Audit and Investigation division, Legal section, Information, Education &
rammunication section and Procurement Management section,

2.9.1 Resources

During the year under review the board continued taking advantage of orgamsational
resources In the process of discharging its responsibilities of loan allocation, disbursement,
repayment and recovery. These resources include;

i. Human resource

HESLE has 282 qualified and experienced employees of different specializations relevant to
the boards’ organisation structure. Out of 282 employees, 161 are male and 121 females. This
number of employees is 102% of the desired manning level of 277 employees.

ii.  Financial Resource

During the year under review the board received operating income of TZS 56,635,098,694
made up of TZS 13,154,647,507 and 43,480,451,187 from exchange and non-exchange
transactions.

Received funds for issuing loans to Tanzanian students for higher tertiary education from the
government of the united republic of Tanzania amounting to TZS 646,280,561,748 and
recevered TZS 173.722,737.861 from students® loans receivables.

Maintained liguid assets (current assets) of TZ5 316,375,663,491 at the start of the perlod and
TI5 261,045 858,065 at the end of the period.

fii. Technological resources

Consist of a number of computer application systems and software used to process and
marage its daily activities. These include; MLUSE, iLMS, GePG, GAMIS, HesT, eDMS and
PlanRep.

Controller and Auditor General AR/PA/HESLE/2023/24
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fv. Capital assets

Capital assets for year under review consist of property, plant and equipment with carmying
value of TZS 7.434,237,661, Intangible Assets with carrying value of TI3 534,179,080 and
work in progress with camying value of TZ5 11,104,792,377.

v. Relationship

HESLE rmaintains good relationship with stakeholders as an important resource, its

stakeholders Include Higher Learning Institutions, sister organizations under the parent -

Ministry of Education, Science and Technology, strategic partners, Higher Learning students
and Leaderships and general public.

2.9.2 Strategies

i Establish operational links between HESLB and higher education institutions with
student lpan beneficiaries for facilitating a smooth, efficlent and effective
administration of the loanable funds

ii.  Establish operational links with employers of loan heneficiaries for the purpose of
facilitating the recovery of the loans granted

i,  Establish networking and cooperation links on a mutually beneficial basis with
institutions and organizations, be they governmental of non-governmental, local,
forsign or international

. Increase application of information and communication Technalogies and timely
information exchange with stakeholders

v, Conduct research and maintain a data bank on other local and external scholarships,
sponsorships and awards that may be accessed by Tanzanian students in need or in
search of opportunities and financial sponsorship or assistance for higher education
and/far training

2.9.2 Process

HESLR is mandated with administration and supervision of the whole process of granting (Loan
application, ailocation and disbursement), repayment and recovery of loans fssued to
students, also is responsible with keeping of register and other records of students’ loan
beneficiaries.

i, Loan Application, Allocation and Disbursement

During the year under review HESLB processed students loan application, allocation and
dishureemant through digital platforms and systems including Student's Individual Permanent
Account (SIPA) and Digital Dishursement Solution (DiDi5), These systems have been integrated
with MUSE accounting system 1o enhance loan allocation and dishursement processes,
improve efficiency and minimize customer complaints.

Controller and Auditor General ARFPAJHESLE/2023/24
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#i.  Loan Repayment and Recovery =

HESLE collected loan repayment and recovery through tracing and billing from due loans. Due
loans are extracted from students’ loan receivables maintained in a digital system named
integrated Loan Management System. This system is also integrated with GePG, Dilis and
MUSE accounting system for interaction & synchronization of data and enhancement of loan

repayment and recovery processes,

2.9.4 Output

During the period under review the following were the output from HESLB business
operations; -

i. Loan allocation

HESLB allocated loans to 224,056 students (79,1 13 first-year students and 144,973 continuing
students). Allocated loans amounted to TIS 743,199,834,338 (TI5 730,624,905,147 to first-
year students and T7% 512,574,929,191 to continuing students}. Further, 1,228 students { 918
first-year and 310 continuing) were allocated grants under the SAMIA scholarships, amounting
tn T2S 6,429 497,832 Furthermore, in the year financial year HESLB allocated Diploma Loans
far the first time, 2714 students (2,538 first years and 176 continuing) allocation amaounted to
TI5. 7,424,883, 500.

#i. Loan disbursement

jil. Total loans of TI5 777.620,215,602 have been disbursed to students TES
720,622,143,205 for local undergraduate, TIS 1,298,349,063 for postgraduates, TS
958 236,728 for Overseas and TZS 5,441 486,605 for Diploma students. In addition,
along with the amount of loans disbursed to students, there is also an amount of TZS
5. 844,067,172 was disbursed to students for SAMIA Scholarship. Loan repayment and
recovery

During the year, HESLE targeted Lo collect due loans TZ5 203 billion by using varicus strategic
interventions. For the year 2023/24, HESLE Management managed to collect TIS
173.722,737.B61 due loans and T75 2,884,515,846 from Loan Administration fees (7% of the
collection targets), which resulted into an average monthiy collection of TI5 14.72 billion.

2.9.5% Qutcome

The continued provision of loans amd grants for needy and eligible Tanzanian students to
undertake higher and tertiary educatien and proper mechanism for loan repayment and
recovery that contribute to reliable and sustainable higher education revalving fund.

Cantroller and Auditor General AR/PAMESLE 2023724
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2.10 CASH FLOW PROJECTION

The continued cooperation and support from the Government, good relationship with higher
learning institutions, corporate partnership and the close follow up exerted by the
Management with the assistance of technological enhancements undertaken have improved
HESLE cash flow.

Furthermore, HESLE continued to implement the Higher Education for Economic
Transformation (HEET) project worth USD 4 million {Equivalent to TZS 9,216,785,200)
financed by the World Bank (WB). A five years project with an overall objective of
strengthening the learning emviranment and labour market alignment of priority programs and
enhancing the delivery of knowledge to produce graduates who meet the demand and
standard of the current and future labour market.

2.11 SOLVENCY

The Board of Directors confirms that the current financial position of HESLB is robust and as
per review conducted, HESLE is in a gond going concern basis. The Government's continued
financial support guarantees the ability of meeting all maturing financial obligations. The BaD
therefore, confirms that HESLE has adequate financial resources to continue with its
pperations for the foresee-able future.

The BoD considers different alternative financing mechanisms that can assure flow of finance
to mest both recurrent and development commitments. HESLE's main goal s to ensure it
remains as vibrant organisation in terms of sustainability and proper management of the
loanable funds far ensured reliability to tertiary education students in the country.

As a public institution that needs to have reliable, growing, independent and sustainable
sources of financing. Profit making mative is not HESLB's key objective rather it is focused on
ensuring that the Institution upholds liquidity and is continually able to mest her mandate.

Table & Liguidity Ratios

... . — 2DTH I ____2022/23
Current Ratio 14.541 et
Achd Test Ratio | 14.53:1 9.15:1

Basing on Liquidity ratio the Institution is liguid to meet its current obligation when falls due.
2.12 CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The capital of the HESLE includes capital loanable funds, recaovered students’ loans, staff loan
revolving fund and accumulated surplus. The HESLB complies with all requirements relating to
maintenance of capital. Capital maintenance is through national budget allocation to HESLB
threugh the Ministry of Education, Science and Technology.

Controller and Auditor General AR/PA/HESLBSZ023/24
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tource: HESLB Financial Statements

During the year under review net assets
increased by 11% from TZ5 4,111,281,644,333
of last financial year to TS
4 577,536,426,839. The increase fs mainly
caused by the mandatory adoption of IPSAS 41
which reqguires restatement of pricr Financial
Statements to accommodate A forward-
loaking impairment model (ECL). Almost every
there s increase in |panable fund
{amount received for financing students’
loans). The recovery fram maturing Students’
lpans {ex-students} are transferred  to
Faonsclidated Fund. Loanabie Funds (fumnd
received from Gavernment) has increased to
775 6.42 trillion in 2023/24 compared to 5.78
trillion in 2022/13. An accumulated Capital
maintenance decreased by 4% in 2023/14.
Recovery Amounts Transferred ta
Consolidated Fund increased by 13% when
T75. 1.46 trilhion (Cumulative) of current
financial year is compared to TZ5 1.29 trillien
Cumulative) of last financial year.
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7.13.1 Revenue

During the year under review,
compared to TZS 39 044,384,02
Government Grant Development
Grant Development Foreign for HEET project a

Table. 1.9 below.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR -

"~ HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD

HESLE recorded revenue amounting to TZ5 56,635,098,694
3 for the year 2022/13. Reasons
Local, accrued LAF, Governme

for the increase was due to
nt subvention, Government
nd Revenue Grants far Samia gcholarship. Refer

Controller and Auditer ceneral

Table &: Revenue Collectad _
i 2024 02l FIiFE] | 2021 2020
T 15 R - R e ;e TIs
Govarnment Subention - PE B 4B £E£, 100 B.417,775,006 | 5,83% 1B M7 | 4 F56, 095,406 4,368,881,171
[ Grrrerrmant Suilwsentan - OC 17,055, 390,000 12,120,000,000 | 7,408,306,616 T =y
mmmmt Grant  Devetppment 5 000, DO, 000 5, 000,000,000 :
“Revenue Grants T Semperiiz| 2 377 845,575 | 8O0, 000 & 704000 | 1.345.006,0% |
[“Walue Retontion Fee [VAZ) SRR Sl - | 00,600,000 i
[ Feralty on Repmmnant — | wopamgar | DBMaRNL 4199, 430, 798 | 75,676,750,993
[ Toan Adrindstration Fecs T 76,202,156 | 6,790 SR ME R —5,433,151,877 | 5,415, 7H0.R1B 3,674,103, 480 |
_ApplicationFees 4559 952,051 | 3,029,271,700 3 9T0,5T6,0 |  1,080,322,300 | 76415205
Interest Incomm S= s = T 15,814,137 19,98 BT
E‘:":E"““ Grant  Develogament 4,168 950,668 | 3.714,336,713
Oither Income - Vil ARG, 100 | 2,202,550,835 | 3,707 560,899 T 130,778,060 |
Peswcrsal of provishon ! imparment
unmi-.ra_n_};s_@:_ il S =) I I - e o)
[ Total Reverue 55,635,098, 674 39,044,384,023 | 73,832,506 478 E4,657,108,349 | 37,888,403,918 |
7.13.2 Expenditure
During the year, HESLB incurred expenses amounting to T3 49.077,422,073 compared to TZ5
693,027,578,952 restated for the year 2022/23. The decrease was mainly caused by T avorable
change in expected credit, Refer Table. 1.10 below!
Table 10: Expenditure
2024 2023 2022 1 2021 200
Bawdiems = | ws | ms | vs | WS
Salaries, Wages, and Employmest Banefila 15, 108,520 047 14,203, 506,052 10,684 424 151 8,457 850,535 7,534 540592
E and Gonsumahies 1G.5T8.662314 TaETig0TEet | g0uee0461 | BT TR A4S | BATA, 131944
 Interest Expendiiures == et = — -1 zaimmEn
Studsnis Grani Expensas — | EpumeTaTa|  2amipesars| 800,000 BI040 | 1,545006,082
Diher Expenses 3180486284 | 4D6B564,154 : — o e 0STHETT |
| Expected Crodil Logs SROGTHEE2TS | BalADRATESO ) ol e _ -]
Total Expenditure §9.077,422073 | G93,021,618,952 | TaTBEEB4E1Z | 17,195350.237 | 41808777804
Su 2] ﬂiﬂuﬁ,aﬁ] (653,03, 194,929) 4 DRE 521,86 A7 461,758,122 E,H!.E?Eﬂ
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2.13.3 Deficit

2.13.4During the year ended 30 June 2024, the HESLE recorded a deficit of TIS
12,442,323,379 against restated deficit of TZ5 $53,983,194,929 for previous year. The
decrease in deficit was mainly caused by favarable change in gxpected credit
loss. . Trend of Revenus and Expenditure for five years

Expenditure has been increasing for the Tots Reverue Vs Total Expenditure for Fmancil Year
lact three years prior to 2023/24 except sl - 20N

for 2020721 decreased compared to

7019/20. On the other hand, revenue

increased in 2023/14 compared with s

2072/23; the increase in 2023724 was
due to received Government Grant 3
Development  Local, Governmeant o { X
subwention, Government Grant i /
Development Foreign for HEET project
and Revenue Grants for scholarship.
Other operations were also financed by
oo spurce  collections; loan
sdministration fee which i based on the me
number of new loans and loan |
application fee which slightly increased e o \ .
due to increase of number of loan -

rEs Allioene

applicanls, T pIohiL ipei oA i i

e Sk By e e

7.14  FIMANCIAL POSITION
2.44.1 Current Assets

During the year under review, Taotal Current Assets decreased to TIS 261,045,858,065 from
TIS 316,375,663 49 (2022/13). The decreasé in current assel WwWas associated with
decrease in cash and cash equivalents and gther receivables.

2.14.2 Students’ Loan Receivables

The students’ Loans receivable increased during the year from last financial year balance by
loans issued to students amounting TZ5 737,620,215,602 and accrued LAF of TIS
7,276,202,156. Het students’ loans recetvable as a sum of long term and short-term
recetvables decreased by 132 from TIS 4,175,755,605,138 of last financial year 10 T5
4.?ﬂ5,u51.21ﬂ,5&ﬂ, the increase is caused by Loans lssued to srudents in the current fimancial

year.

Controller and Auditor General AR/PAMHESLBS/ 2023724
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2.14.31 Het Assets

The Net Assets decreased by 11% from TIS 4,111,281,644,333 of last financial to TI5
4 577,536,426,839; the Increase was attributed by capital additions in Funds Received for
Issuing Loans and staff Loans Revolving Funds.

7.15 CASH FLOW

The cash flows from oparating activities have improved by 163% from net outflows of TIS
4,760,194 ,800 of last financial year to net inflows of TZ5 2.990,941,269.

The cash outflows for {rvesting activities have increased by 13% from net outflaws of TZ5
&51,942,057,561 of last financial year to net outflows of TZS 734,966,866,382. The increase is
due to budget improvement in the current financial year,The net cash flows from financing
activities have dropped by B% from net inflows of TZ5 705,702, 168,846 of last financial year
to net inflows of TI5 457.419,843,746. The decrease is due to budget fund appropriation not
yet recefved.

2.16 TREASURY MANAGEMENT

HESLE financial regulations involves mechanism actablished by board of directors that
delegate treasury management 10 Management in & controlled manner. The control
instruments in place include Legislation, regulations, government eirculars, guideling and
resolutions of board of directors related to opening, pperation and authorization of bank
accounts.

The primary objective s to emsure the proper contral and safeguarding of government
financial resources, under this mechanism revenue is been collected through pantrol nurmber
ta revenue collection accounts maintained at commercial banks (CRDE, MMB, MBC and TCE)
and the Bank of Tanzama {BOT) using GePG system.

Revenue collected through commercial banks are then transfarred on weekly basis to HESLE
eollection account maintained at Bank of Tanzania. All expenditure of the Board incurred
within the approved limits outlined in the annual budget.

2.17 BUDGET

The budget approved is on @ cash basis by function classification. The approved budget covers
the fiscal perod from 01 July 2023 to 30 June 30 2024 and includes all activities within the
Higher Education students’ Loans Board (HESLE). The original and final budget proposed by
the Bob and approved by the partiament of the United Republic of Tanzania on June 2023.

Controller and Auditor General AR/PA/HESLE/2023/24
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2.18  MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

Management of the HESLB is under the Executive Director aesisted with five-line divisions as
fallows:
a) Line Division

i, Loans Allocation and Dishursement Divisian
i, Loans Repayment and Recovery Division
4. Finance and Administration Division
. Planning, Research and ICT Division
v. Internal Audit and Investigation Division

by  Staff Function

There are three staff funclions under the Executive Director’s Office including:
i,  Legal hection
i Information, Education and Communication section
#{.  Procurement Management Section
During the year Key Management Team was made up of the following:

Table 9; Key Management Team

5/Mo. | Full Hame | Designatfom

1 or. Bill Kiwia | Executive Director ) _

2 l Mr. Elihuruma Lema | Directos of Finance and Administration

3 pr. Tumainiel Mehomia | mirector of Internal Audit and Investigations

4 | Mr. Benedicto Cosmas | Directof for Planning, Research and ICT

5 | Dr. Peter Mmari _ | Acting Director Loan Allncation and Disbursement

6 | Mr. George Mziray | Director Loan Repayment and Recovery

7| M Brown Shimwela | Chief Accountant

8 | Ms Sarah Fihavango | Assistant Director Loan Msbursement

9| Mr. Dews Changala, Assistant Director Loan Allacation

10 | Mr. Fidelis Joseph Asstetant Director Loan Repayment

11 | Mr. Gibson Mayani assistant Director Human Resaurce and Administration

12 | Mr. Zaharani Kisiiwa Assistant Director Legal Affairs e

13 | Mr. Adrian Njau Aszistant Director Planning and Research

14 | Ms. Hidaya Karunde Chief Internal Apsditor #
15 | Mr. Omega Ngole _ Assistant Director Communbeation, Information and Education
16 | Ms, Hadija Shuma | Assistant Director Pracurement and Supplies _

17 | Mr. Bahati singa | Agsistant Director information and Communication Technology
18 | Wr. Deus Changala | Assistant Director Loans Allocathon

1% | Ms. Anna Sabani = | Zonal Manager - Dar &5 Salaam

70 | Ms. Lucy Kirigha | Acting Tonal Manager - Arusha

21 | Ma. Octavia Seleman | Zonal Manages - Dodoma

21 | Mr. Usama Chosa Zonal Manager - Mwana -
73 | Ms, Rukfa Semwaiko n Tongl Manager - Mbwara -

14 | Mr. Philbert Temba | Acting Zonal Manager - Tanzibar

75 | Mr. Anthany Doko | 7omal Manager - Mbeya

Spavce; HESLE Mamageredt team

Controdler and Auditor Gengral AR/PA/HESLB/ 2023724
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7.19 KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS DURING THE YEAR

HESLB has developed its mission ta carry it through and has the fifth strategic plan runming
from 2022/23 - 2026/17. This is a rolling plamn reviewed at every year-end, and updated to
ensure that it is still appropriate far the HESLE to achieve its mission. During the financial
year 2023/14, HESLE annual budget, which is in line with current Strategic Plan, focused to
achieve the following specific ob jectives: -

(. To verify, validate and process loan applicants’ information for issuance of loans to
70,000 first year students and 113,338 continuing students;
ii.  To inspect 8,000 employers and identify 40,000 new loan beneficiaries, aiming 1o
increase annual loan repayments collection ta TZS 210,000,000,000.
#. To verify loan beneficiaries studying In overseas students in Mozambigque, Russia,
Algeria and Cuba;
iv. Strengthening the HESLE Dodoma Capital Office and Eastern Zong operations as
strategic lecations for eollection and enhanced customer services;
v. Enhancement of automation to key processes and supportive services to improve
operational efficiency;
vi. To develop and operationalize & business continuity plan for effective risks mitigation
and budget implementation;
vil. To undertake studies on HESLE business growth, impact of HWational Priorty Loan
scheme, and higher education accessibility through loans issuance:;
wifi. Extend enrolment of all ctudents into DIDis and strengthen monitoring of loan
dishursement and all HESLE activities; and
ix. Commencement of Phase | for HESLB office construction at Mjedengwa in Dodoma.

2.20 EXTERNAL ENVIRONMENT

External factors that positively or negatively impacted HESLE's operations in 2023/24 fnciude;
Paolitical Factors:

. Paositive Impact: The political environment in Tanzania during the 2023/24 financial year
was highly favorable to HESLE's pperations, The government demonstrated a continued
commitment o improving access 1o higher education by allocating sufficlent resources [0
the Board from TZS. 657 billion in 20322/23 to TZ5. 731.98 hiltlon in 2023/24 denoting a
11% increase in loanable budget.

a This political support translated into increased funding for students from 202,016
beneficiaries in 2022/23 to 224,056 baneficiaries in 2023/24. Additionally, the political
stabflity in the country allowed HESLE to operate without significant disruptions, providing
a steady framework for the Board's long-term objectives. Strong government backing also
facilitated the successful implementation of policies that aimed to improve loan
accessibility, repayment processes, and the overall sustainability of the loan program.

Controller and Auditor General AR/PAMHESLB/2023/24
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Technological Factors:-

« Positive Impact: Advancements in digital platforms and systems have improved the
efficlency of loan application processing and fund disbursement. During the year untder
review HESLE ephanced internal system as follows: Disaster Recovery solution, Voice-
Dver-Internet protocol System, Oniine Loans Management System, Digital Disbursement
eotution, HEL Portal, LIPA, sipA, EPO, Machine Learning platform, e-DMS and Digital Qmni-
channel Customer Engagement colution, The use of technology also  enhanced
communication with students and heneficiaries through online portals, making the loan .
process more accessible and user-friendly.

« HNegative Impact: Cybersecurity risks and technical giitches accasionally disrupted online
carvices, causing delays in loan processing and affecting user expertence,

Legal Factors:-

» Positive Impact: Continued updates to the legal and regulatary framework governing
student loans ensured that HESLE's operations remained compliant and aligned with
pational priorities. Legisiative support for expanding loan eligibility and recovery
Processes strengthened the Board’s capacity 10 sorve students.

« Megative Impact: Changes in legal frameworks or delays in the passage of relevant laws
could sometimes cause operational uncertainties, especially in terms of \oan recovery and
loan eligibility criteria.

Economic Factors:

. Positive Impact: The averall economic stability of the country provided a suppartive
erviranment for HESLE's operations. Additionally, the government’s focus on econamic
arowth and investment in education helped Increase the funding available for student
leans.

s MHegative Impact: inflation and economic downturms affected the repayment capacity of
past loan beneficiaries, leading to slower loan recavery rates, Economic challenges also
increased the financial burden on students, making it harder for some Lo pay hack loans

2.21 SERVICE PERFORMANCE IMFORMATION

The Entity’s Service Performance infarmation discloses information meaded for accountability
and decision-making purpose, primarily to help users of the report by Those Charged with
Governance 1o understand what the entity had set out to achieve (target) and what it has
achieved (results). The service performance information is generally a mix of qualitative and
quantitative reparking.

rontroller and Auditor General AR/PA/HESLE 202324
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Summary of Sendce performance information (Explained further in respective seckions)

Objective 1
Assuime responsibility for the contral and management of all lpanable funds
Strategies

Establish operational links between HESLE and higher education institutions with student loan
beneficiaries for facilitating a smaooth, efficient and effective administration of the loanabie
funds

Target

Equitably provide Loans and grants to needy and eligible Tanzanian students for higher
tertiary education and manage efficiently and effective f inancial resources

Risks

HESLE is prone to financial risks, which includes credit risk, and liquidity risks because of
=ome of the beneficiaries fail to repay the |oans because of dynamics in labour markets,

| death of beneficiarles before paying the loans. Under Operational risk thers is a Possibility of

making payments 10 Wrong Beneficiary due Lo impropes verification of payments and payes
details during inltiation, pxamination and appreval of payments because of Loss of
Government fund and possibility of delay in fssuing guidetine and criteria due to late
endorsement may lead to delays in allocation of loans and scholarships.

Risk revel

Moderate

Impact

Tanzanian higher education students provided with loans and grants for studies
Mitigation

Payments are dane after relevant verification and approvals as per jnternal controds and
proper follow up of Beneficiaries payment records before approval, Availability of Annual
Action Plan for preparation of guidelines, Timely engagement of stakeholders and flollow up

' the endarsement of guidelines in the MOEST

Input
Higher Education Loan appiicants, Grants and Loanable Funds

Process

Controller and Auditor General AR/PAHESLE 1023724
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i Formulating tive mechanism for determining eligible students for payment of loans |

together with administering and supervising the whole process of payment and
repayment of loan
i, Heeping register and other records of students’ lean beneficiaries

Outputs

Loans and grants for noedy and aligible Tanzanian students to undertake higher and tertiary
education

Outcome

lseuing Loan to the needy and eligikie Tanzanian students to undertake higher and tertiary
education

KPls
i, Aamount of Loan Dishursed
fi. Students Loans Disbursement time in Days
fii.  Humber of Loan Applicants
w. Students’ loans allocation time in days
v. Mumber of Research Conducted/Commissioned
vi. Percentage of Burning rate - loanable fund
vit.  Amount of Revolved fund
viil,  Amount of Government Lubvention
fe.  Amount of Actusl loanahle expenditure

| Implementations Status

i.  During the financial year 2023/14, HESLE allocated loans to 774,056 students (79,133
first-year students and 144,913 continuing students]. Allocated leans amounted ko TI5
743,199,834,338 (TI5 230,674,305, 147 to first-year students and TS 512,574,929,191
ta continuing students). Further, 1,228 students {918 first-year and 310 continuing)
were allpcated grants under the SAMIA scholarships, amounting Lo TIS 6,429,497 B34.
Furthermare, in the year 9023 /24 HESLB issued Diploma ioans for the first time, 2714
students (2,538 first years and 176 continuing) received a total of TZ5. 7.424,883,500.

ii. Male-female ratio; the gender 2ap continued Lo narrcw as evidenced by a Male-female
ratio of 56/44 this year from 59/41 reported last financial year. On the other hand, 2
share af high-impact programs {Cluster 1) during the year increased from 23% to 33%,

. Similarly, total of loans of T75 727.620,215,602 has been dishursed to students{TZ5
770.622,143,205 for local undergraduate, TI5 1,298,349,065 for postgraduates, TIS
158,236,728 for Overseas and TI5 5,441,486,603 for Diploma students. In addition,
along with the amount af loans dishursed to students, there is also an amount of TZ5
5, 844,067,172 was disbursed ta students for SAMIA Scholarship).

Budgeted Funds

| 738,726,557,800

Controller and Auditor Gansral AR/PA/MHESLE /2023724
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Actual Funds

T27.620,115,602

Objective 1
Grant loan maneys o pligible Tanzanian students for higher tertiary education

Strategies

Establish operational links between HESLE and higher education institutions with student loan
beneficiaries for facilitating a smooth, efficient and effective administration of the loanable |
funds

Target

Equitably provide Loans and grants to needy and eligible Tanzanian students for higher
tertiary education and manage efficiently and effective financial resources

Risks

Operational risk; there {s a possibility of making payments to wrong Beneficiary dus to
improper verification of payments and payee details during initiation, examination and
approval of paymenis as a result of Loss of Government fund and possibility of delay in issuing
guideline and eriteria due to late endorsement may lead to delays in allocation of loans and
schalarships.

Risk revel

Medium

Impack

Tanzanian higher education students provided with loans and grants for studies
Mitigation

availability of Annual Action plan for preparation of guidelines, Timely engagement of
' stakeholders and ffollaw up the endarsament of guidelines in the MOEST

Input
Loan applicants, Grants and Loanable Funds

Process

| Controller and Auditor Ganeral AR/PAMHESLB/2023/24
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i Formulating the mechanism for determining eligible students for payment of leans
together with administering and supervising the whale process of payment and
repayment of loan

. Weeping register and other records of students’ loan beneficiaries

Qutputs

higher and tertiary education
Quicome
| lssued loans and grants to qualified applicants

KPis
i Amount of Loan Disbursed

1. Students Loans Dishursement time in Days

i, Mumber of Loan Applicants

v, Students' loans allocation time in days

v. Mumber of Research Conducted/ Commissioned

vi. Percentage of Burming rate - lnanable fund
vii,  Ameunt of Revolved fund
wifi.  Amount of Gevernment Subvention

b, Amount of Actual loanable expenditure
Implementations Status

i,  During the financial year 2073/24, HESLE allocated loans 1o 724,056 students (79,133
first-year students and 144,923 continuing students. Further, 1,218 students (518 first-
year and 210 continuing) were allocated grants under the SAMIA scholarships and
Diploma loans for the first time, 2714 students (2,538 first years and 176 continuing)

ji. Male-female ratio, the gender gap continued to nArrow a5 evidenced by a Male-female
ratic of 56744 this year from 59/41 reported last financial year. On the other hand, a
share of high-impact programs {Cluster 1) during the year mcreased from 23% to 33%.

Budgeted Funds
| 738,726,557,800

o nt i

Actual Funds

_ET,&ID. 215,604

Controller and Auditor Gereral AR/PATHESLB 2023724
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Recaver all loan moneys awed by farmer student loan beneficiaries since July, 1994
Strategies

Establish operational links with employers af loan beneficiaries for the purpose of facilitating
the recovery of the loans granted and system integrations with key Strategic Stakeholders
including HIDA, TRA, NSSF, Professional Boards and Councils

Target

To trace 40,000 beneficiaries and cellect TI% 230,000,000.00 from the list of due and unpaid
loans in fulfilling its collection mandate as per HESLB Act sect 7{l). i

Risks

HESLE is prane to financial risks, which include credit risk, and liquidity risks due to failure of
some of the beneficiaries fail to repay the loans because of dynamics in labour markets,
death of beneficiaries before paying the loans that leads to the loss of Government Funds.
Operational risks include failure Lo identify some loan beneficiaries where about, insufficient
operational budget and some of employers may not disclose beneficiary’s information.
Reputational risk occurs in the cause of tracing non beneficlaries due to name similarities or
over reductions and Strategic risk that can be can caused by attrition due to diseases which

may lead loss of fund. '

Risk revel
Madiam
Impact

Possibility of failure to identify loan beneficiaries where about, lack of corporation of
employers to disclose the beneficiaries’ names, insufficient operational budget and attrition
may lead to low collection hence failure to meet the given annual collection targets.

Mitigation

Use aof Form Four index number and comprehensive verification before bills preparation,
conducting public awareness programs, conducting employers’ inspections, partnering with
=takeholders, take legal action to loan beneficiaries and employers who default and
increasing operational budgets

Inputs

List of defaulters with due loans, dropouts, employers, system integrations with key strategic

partners, employees and ¢ encugh operational budget.

Controller and Auditor General ARMPAMESLB/2023/24
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Process

{. Formulating proper mechanism for inspection, tracing, verification and billing all
heneficiaries with due loan for payment

ji. MWeeping and updating loanee register and other records of beneficiaries with due loans
far repayments follow-up

Qultcome

Recover all due loan and MONEYS awed by former student loan beneficlaries since July, 1934
hence meet the annual given tracing and collection targets.

KPis
(., Amaount of due loan coliected
.  Mumber of loan heneficiaries traced and billed
fii.  Humber of Integrations with key Strategic srakeholders in place
iv. Percentage of collection rate - loanable fund
v.  Amount of Revolved fund
vi.  Amount of Actual expenditure incurred to trace and collect the due lpan

Implementation Status

During the financial year 2073/24, HESLE managed to coliect T2 176,607,257, 707 (774 of the
given target to collect TZ5 230,000,000,000) and Traced 54,362 (135.9% of the given tracing
target to trace 40,000 loan beneficiaries with due loans).

Tracing and Collection targets
Planned to trace 40,000 |oan beneficiaries and collect TE2S 230,000,000,000
Actual Tracing and Collection

During the year under review, HESLE traced 54,361 beneficiaries and collected TZ5
ITE._«E:_IZ]_?;.ISLTGE which includs lu::lin aﬂin'istrglt_iﬂ_n fee.

Objective 4
Equitable facilitation of access to Technical and Higher Education Institutions

Strategies

Conduct research and maintain a data bank on other local and external scholarships,

sponsorships and awards ecessed by Tanzanian students in need or in search of opportunities
and _f'inanr_t_a_l__ﬂ_;pnnsmship or assistance for higher _t:dw:atiun and for training and |ncrease

Controller and Auditor General AR/PAHESLE/ 2023714
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~hccess to loans and grants. s
Risks

HESLE is prone to Operaticn risk caused by delay in issuing guideline and selection criteria,
Receiving Inaccurate loan applications, |ssuance of Loans to Non-Heedy students, |ssuance af
wrong loan amounts to beneficiaries, Disbursing loans and grants ko Dropout Students.

Risk revel
Moderate
impact

Possibitity of issue loans o non-Meedy students, wrong loan amounts Lo beneficiaries,
disbursing loans and grants to Dropout Students and Issue Loans and grants to ungualifiad
needy and eligible Tanzanian students wha undertake higher and tertiary education.

Mitigation

svailability of Annual Action plan for preparation of guidelines, Timely engagement of
ctakeholders, verification and follow up the endorsement froam various stakeholders.

Input

List of new applicants and continuing students, Admission number from HlI's and other
relevant information from Key Strategic Shareholders.

Process

i Esrmulating the mechanism for determining eligible students for payment of loans
together with administering and supervising the whole process of payment and
repayment of loan

il.  Keeping register and other records of students' laan beneficiaries
Outputs

Issued Loans and grants to qualified needy and eligible Tanzanian stisdents Lo undertake
higher and tertiary education

Qutcome

Issued lpans and grants to qualified applicants

KPIls
. .ﬁ.mnult_nf Ln-ar[ Disbursed

B s Ll — =3
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~i. Students Loans Sishursement time in Days.
«fi.  Humber of Loan Applicants

xiii.  Students’ loans allocation time in days
viv. Mumber of Research Conducted/Commissioned
w. Percentage of Buming rate - loanable fund
evi.  Amaunt of Revolved fund

wwii Amount of Government Subvention

viii,  Amount of Actual lnanable expenditure

Implementations Status

i.  During the financial year 2023/14, HESLE allocated loans to 224 056 students (79,133
first-year students and 144,923 continuing students. Further, 1,728 students (918 first-
year ard 310 continuing) were allocated grants under the SAMIA scholarships and
Diploma loans far the first time, 2714 students (2,538 first years and 176 continuing)

i, Male-female ratio; the gender gap continued Lo narrow as evidenced by a Male-female
ratio of 56/44 this year from 3%/ 41 reported last financial year. On the other hand, a
share of high-impact programs {Cluster 1) during the year increased from 23% to 33%.

Allocation and disbursement targets

Planned to allocate and disburse loan to 75,000 new beneficiaries and 124,591 continuing
students

Actual allocation and dishursemeants

| Actual performance I_-I_E_:E]._E-_isgugd lean Lo T"_il,133 be_ne_ﬁ:iarir.-s aﬂd cnntl:nuerfg_a_EdE_rﬂs 1-l_4£13

|

Objective 5
Efficient and effective delivery of services to customers and stakeholders
| Strategies

Increase application of information and communication Technologies and timely information
exchange with stakeholders

Target

Establish networking and cooperation links on a mutually beneficial basis with institutions and
organizations, be they governmental or non-governmental, local, foreign or international

Risks

controller and Auditor Ganaral ARJPA/HESLE/ 2023724
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daufﬁnﬁfﬁn_and_féi to deliver desired servicesto aur stakeholders.
Risk revel

High

| Impact

Damage of the Image anc Reputation of the Institution, but if well managed, can build a good
reputations and high corporations from stakehalders in achieving its objectives.

Mitigation
Customer care training to HESLB Staff, timely complain and conflict handling.
Input

Employers, prospective students, current loanee, graduate loanee, Employee and Key
Strategic Shareholders,

Process

Updating the service charter and delivery policy to cutter the customer need on Lime.
Cutputs

Efficient and effective services o customers and stakehalders

Cutcome

Building a good reputations and high corporations from stakeholders in achieving iLs
objectives.

KPls
i Time taken to handle customer inguiries
# Mumber of customer inquiries resclved on time

implementations Status
During the financial year 073724, HESLE received 73,544 inquiries and resolved them timely.
Annual Plans

To resolve all customer and related party inquiries timely as per Service Cliant Charter

Actual inquiries Eﬁpﬁrﬁd and solved

Controller and Auditar General AR/PAMHESLBI2023/24
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2.21 ANNUAL PERFOMAMNCE AND KEY ACHIEVEMENTS
7.22.1 GOVERMANCE AND STATUTORY COMPLIANCE

During the financial year 2023/24, HESLE implemented several initiatives to enhance
governance and gtatutory compliance;
1. Regular audits apel risk assessmEnLs WEre conducted to strengthen internal contraols
and ensure compliance with statutory reguirements,
Il. The BoD conducted 26 meetings throughout the financial year, including regular and
extraordinary meelings far the full board and its committees (FPA, LARL and ARC),

. The LARC approved significant loan allocation for various student categories including
loan allocation to new first year and continuing undergraduate students, Diploma and
grants for Samia scholarships.

. The FRA endorsed <pveral budget recasts and realiocations to adjust to changing needs
and acditional funding as well as opening of a student loan payment bank account with
HMME.

v,  The ARC approved and QVersesn implantation of internal and external audit plans. risk
registers and actian plars for the financial year.

These measures have helped HESLB maintain transparency and accountability in its
pperations.

2,91 BUSINESS PROCESSES AMND DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION

HESLE has made significant progress in digital transformation, implementing the Student’s
Individual Permanent Account (5IPA), Digital Disbursement solution (DIDiS), Employer Portal
(EPQ), and Loanees individual Payment Account [LIPA). Enhanced MUSE to align it with HESLE
Business Processes. These systems have revolutionized the loan application, dishursement,
and recovery processes, enhancing efficiency and minimizing complaints.

Management has completed the comprehensive review of HESLB. The interim Report on the
Review of HESLE Operations and Structure has been presented to management. The final
report is scheduled for submission pending presentation Lo the Mintster of Education, Science,
and Technology.

2 73.1 TECHNOLOGICAL ADVANCEMENTS

« Implementation of an anline loan application system, which streamlined the
application process for students,

Contreller and Auditor General AR/PAMHESLB/Z02324
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« Enhanced repayment module by modifying the loanees ledger to meet finance
accounting standards and developing auto clearance letters in OLAMS-ePO, allowing
{oan heneficiaries to download clearance letters directly from the system, eliminating
the need for print out, thereby reducing operational costs and increasing efficiency,

. Substantial progress in developing disaster recovery capabilities, completing 90% of
the implementation of a disaster recovery salution,

+ Began the development of a Machine Learning Platform and Digital Dmni channel &
Customer  Engagement platform (DOCEP], with Servers received and the
implementation phase commenced.

Conducted security assessments, resolved identified vulnerabilities, and integrating systems
with strategic stakeholders such as GovESE, 1FM, UDOM, LGTI MWEKA, and MU to improve data
sharing and operational efficiency.

2.24 STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Higher Education crudents’ Loans Board (HESLE) is a corporate entity established with the
primary goal of assisting eligible and financially needy Tanzanian students in accessing Loans
and grants for higher education, In pursuit of its mission, HESLB engages with .its key
stakeholders to enhance value, address their needs and meet their expectations. These
stakeholders include indhviduals or groups wha have an interest in, of are directly or indireckly
impacted by, the Board's operations, HESLE key stakeholders are;

. Government

HESLE relies entirely on government funding to facilitate the provision of ctudent loans. The
government expects HESLE to support eligible and financially needy Tanzanian students in
accessing loans and grants for higher education, while also ensuring the collection of all
outstanding ioans Lo maintain the sustainability of the loan scheme. In return, HESLE expects
that the allocated funds for stiudent loans and grants will be disbursed promptly to meet
studente financial obligations anvd that all cutstanding loans will be collected in accordance

with the established guidelines.
II. Current Beneficiaries

current student beneficiaries expect timely financial support for their education. They have a
responsibility to use the funds appropriately for their education and promptly inform HESLB of
any changes in their satus. They must also ensUre they meet academic abligations, keeping
in mind the eventual responsibility of repaying the loan after graduation.

.  Past Beneficiaries

Past benaficiaries are obligated Lo repay their loans after completing their studies. They have
a responsibility of ensuring timely and accurate repayment, as putlined in their loan
agreements, and update HESLE on any changes in their contact information or employment

Cantroller and Auditor Genearal AR/PASHESLES 2013724
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statws. By fulfilling these obligations, past beneficiaries contribute to the sustainability of the
loan scheme, enabling future students to benefit from the loans.

v, General Public

The gereral public expects HESLE to effectively manage and disburse funds to eligible
students while ensuring Lransparency and accountability in the process. Public obligations
include supporting the sustainability of the loan scheme through timely repayment by past
beneficiaries and understanding the importance of the loan system in providing educati onal

opportunities. The public is also expected to raise awareness about the loan program and’

ENCOoUrage responsible borrawing and repayment practices 1o ensure continued access for
future students.

V. Employees

HESLE employees pay an important role in contributing to the long-term sSUCCESS and
performance af Board. Their obligations include ensuring the accurate processing of loan
applications and providing timely support Lo heneficiaries. HESLE employees are also
expected to adhere [0 organizatianal policies, contribute o the Boards mission of enabling
accpss to higher education and continuously impreve the lpan management system. In
addition to these responsibilities, there is an expectation for employees to engage in
continuous professional development, maintain a high standard of customer service and work
collaboratively to foster a positive and productive waorking enviranment. Their dedication
directly impacts Lthe success of the loan program and the satisfaction of its stakeholders.

vl. Employers

In the caurse of callecting due loan from beneficiaries employed, HESLE act Sec {20} requires
Employer to collect /deduct the loans from the loan beneficiaries and remit Lo HESLE on as
per HESLE Act,

Vvil.  Others stakeholders

Thiz includes Higher Leaming and Tertiary Institutions, Prospective and Current loan
beneficiaries, TRA, NIDA, TCU, WACTVET, BANKS, RITA, NSSF, 2EEA and Professional bodies.
During the year under review HESLB signed various Moll’s with TRA, NIDA, ZEEA Credit Info for
ceamless students’ loans management for hath issuance and collection of due loans and some
of the professional bodies for data sharing through system integrations in the course of
tracing loan beneficiaries and verifying, allocate and disburse qualified loan applicants though
DiDDs plus.

stakeholders’ expectations and management

HESLE has established processes and systems for management of stakeholders' expectations,
the table below provides how the organization managed its stakeholders’ expectations for Lthe
financial year under review.

AR/PAMESLB 2023/24
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Table 10; Stakeholders’ Expectations and Management --

STAKEHOLDER EXPECTATIONS EﬁPEﬂT&TLﬂHE_mHAGEHEH'I' L]

Fificient management and | HESLB ensured timely and  accurate
dishursement of funds to | disbursement of lnans to eligible students

eligible students as per the guidelines

Timely collection of loan | The Board implemented effective loan

repayments recovery systems and strategies to ensure

Government repaymants are collected on schedule. In
2023/24 HESLE collected T25. 1773

A — bitlbon:

Transparency and | HESLE regularfy submits reports to the

apeauntability in the use of | government and follows proper procedures

piblie resources ta ereure financial  tramsparency and

B acoountebility

Timely  and  sufficient | HESLB ensures that loans and grants are |
financial support for their | disbursed on time to mest students

education educational experses through the Digital

Dishursernent Solutions [DiD3)
Fasy access to support and | HESLE Fa petanlished accessible channels
) asistance fram the Board for students to  seck  suppert and
Current Beneficiaries  —— = | clarification on their loans through SIPA,
dedicated call centre  and autreach

I — programs

Transparency in the loan The Board follows transparent procedurss
allacation process in determining eligibility and disbursing
loans, ensuring fairness through the means
- | TestingTood |
Clear communication | HESLE provides past beneficiaries with
regarding loan  repayment dotailed  repayment  schedules  and
terms and deadlines regularly communicates the deadlines and

conditions for loan repayment throwgh the
Loanee  Individual Permanent ACCOURT

L = [LIPAY ;
Effective  loan recovery | The Board implemented structured ioan
IOCESS recovery  systems,  Including flpxible

repayment  options, o sUpport  past
boneficiaries in meeting thelr obligations
Past Beneficiarios through the Employer Portal (EFO)

Accessible . support  for | HESLB  offers customer suppart  and
repayment-related queries guidance to past beneficiaries, addressing
any guestions Or  issues regarding
repayment through the dedicated call

centre
Fairmess and trarsparency in | HESLB ensures transparency in the laan
lean recovery recovery process by providing  clear
ctatements and reports on the stalus of
) . repayments ST
Tramsparent. and  efficient | HESLB maintains | tramsparency by
. management of loan funds providing regular  updates  on lean
General Public dishursements,g recovery effosts, and
| | financial reports to the public

' controlier and Auditor General AR/PA/HESLE/2023/24
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Fair access to loans for L HESLE ensures that the lean allacation
eligihle students. process is  fair and based on clear
eligibility ~ criteria, giving  deserving
students the o by b0 ACCESS
| ) == financial smparl
Timely colisction of 1030 | yESLE has implemented effective \ean
repayments to sustain the | recovery mechanisms to ersure timely
fund repayments, supporting the sustainability
of the Loan fund for future heneficiaries
Aecountability in the Use of | HESLE demonstrates accountability By
public rescurces adhering to financial regulations, regularly
ayditing its operations, and submitting
reports 1o the government and the public
A supportive  work | HESLE provides  training,  Gareef
nmrimmnentmdpmfasﬂum1 advancement Programs, and fosters a
development opportunities callaborative work  culture to support
LI . e enployes growth .-
Clear  communication of | HESLE ensures  regular pommunication
arganizational  goals regarding  its mission, goals, and
objestives performance expectations,  aligning
employess  efforts  with the Boards
3 ohiectives
HESLB Emplayees Fair _ compensation  and | HESLE offers competitive salaries and
benefits benefits, in line with government policies,
ensUring employees are fairly
compansated for thetr work
Recognition and rewards for | HESLD 5 smployees’
perfarmance contributions  throwgh performance
peviews, recognition  programs, and
incentives for achieving organizational
£ | = __ Lgoals = . ”
Efﬁl‘.'ltﬁt collaborakiaon _aru:l HESLE  maintains  open channels  of
F’-‘_’”"—”""‘”‘-’"m‘”mm joint | communication, ensuring that corparate
initiathres partners are kept infarmed and inwolwed fn
relevant initiatives
L“;ﬁ W:ismﬂf";f l:ﬁ HESLE ensures the p an-d accurate
* il o i disbursement uf_fuﬂd_i to eligible students,
and follows strict financial management
practices, mecting the expectations ol
cOrparate partners involved fn furding or
Corporate Stakeholders supperting the loan systam
Transparency In financial | HESLB conslstently  provides detailed
operations and reparting reports on the allocation and usage of
Tunds, demanstraling Financial
. e lfiﬁﬂ.ﬂiﬁﬁﬁiiﬁ_@@ﬂlﬁjﬂﬂﬁ‘_ —
Sustainable impact of the | ypeigrs efficlent loan recovery system
lan  pregram  for U | d ecnonsible fund management have
students enntributed to the sustainability of the
lpan program, ensuring continued suppot
| for future beneficiaries.
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2,25 CUSTOMER SERVICE IMPROVEMENTS

Customer service enhancements have been implemented, including online services and
improved communication charnels. A dedicated call center operates throughout the loan
application period to assist applicants.

The dedicated Customer Help Desk attended to 71,544 inquiries, and the Interactive Voice
Responder (IVR) system was launched to improve Custamer service.

2.26 PUBLIC AWARENESS CAMPAIGNS

HESLE launched the #Fichua campaign to encourage the public to report loan defaulters, The
campaign was widely publicized through various media channels, raising awareness and
promoting compliance among loan beneficiaries.

2.27 HEET PROJECT

The Higher Education for Ecenomic transformation project (HEET) is financed by World Bank
for a period of five years from 2021/11 to 2015/2076. The main goal of the project is to
improve the learning environment and the orientation of the labour market in priority
programs and strengthen the management af the higher education system.

During the year under review, most planned activities for the HEET project were completed,
with a burning rate of 97% of the total amount disbursed since project inception. The owverall
perfarmance under various implementation areas ranged from £4.8% to 100%. The praject
aims to enhance operational capacity.

7.28 OFFICE BUILDING CONSTRUCTION

Management continued with the implementation of Office construction project at Plot MNo. 4
Block "BB" Mdejengwa lnvestment area in Dodoma City. By the end current financial year
construction s 13% complete, with work progressing on the superstructure of the main
building. The project aims to enhance the organization’s infrastructure.

2.29 RESOURCE MOBILIZATION EFFORTS

Management continues te focus on improving loan recovery rates as a key resource
mobilization strategy. The organization is also exploring funding diversification strategies to
ensure sustafnable operations. Management engaged technical assistants for fundraising
proposal development and submission to potential donors. These efforts aim to diversify
funding sources and ensure sustainable financ al support for higher education financing.
Efforts to diversify funding include exploring new revenue streams and enhancing partnerships
with financial institutions to secure additional resources for student loans

2.30 MAJOR ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Management has effectively carried out digital transformation projects, augmented the loan
budget and beneficiary count, enhanced loan repayment rates, and broadened its financing

Controller and Auditor General AR/PAHESLE 2023724
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ambit to encompass Diploma students, Additionalty, the comprehensive review of HESLE,
aimed at revolutionizing higher education financing in Tanzama, has been completed, These
accomplishments demoristrate the organization’s dedication to widening access to higher
sducation and enhancing operational effectiveness.

2.11 IMPACT OM BENEFICIARIES AND HIGHER EDUCATION SECTOR

HESLE efforts have sianificantly expanded access to higher education for students in
Tanzania, particularly for those from disadvantaged backgrounds and those pursuing studies in
areas of national and job market demand. Improved funding and meore efficient application
procedures have allowed mare students to fulfill their educational goals.

2.32 PARTMERSHIPS AND COLLABORATIONS

Mew partnerships have been formed with various higher education institutions, government
agencies and private sectors to enhance the effectiveness of student loan disbursement and
recavery processes.

2,33  LOAM ALLOCATION AND DISBURSEMENT

Ta meet the demand of the needy and eligible students, the Government approved the
budget for loanable funds amounting to TZS 731.9 billion in 2023/24. Also, the government
cet aside funds for SAMIA Scholarship worth TZS 6.74 billian. The target for allocation of loans
to first-year applicants increased, from 70,000 allocated loans in 2022/23 to a projected
75.000 in 2021/24. Similarly, the total number of loan beneficiaries was expected to Increase
from 205.893 allocated in 2022/22 to a projected 220,376 in 2023724

For the financial year 2023/24, HESLE allocated loans to 224,056 students (79,133 first-year
students and 144,923 continuing students). Allecated loans amounted to TZS 743,199 B34 338
(TZ5 230,624,505,147 to first-year students and TZ5 512,574,929,191 to continuing students),
Further, 1,228 students { 918 first-year and 310 continuing) were allocated grants under the
SAMIA scholarships, amounting to TZ5 6,429 497,832 Furthermore, in the year 2023724 HESLE
ssued Diploma loans for the first time, 2714 students (2,538 first years and 176 continuing}
received a total of TZ5. 7,424,883,500.

With regard to gender distribution, the gender gap continued to narraw as evidenced by a
Male-female ratio of 56/44 this year from 59/41 reported last financial year. On the other
hand, a share of high-impact programs {Cluster 1} during the year increased from 23% to 33%.
simitarly, total of lpans of TIS 717,620,215,602 has been disbursed to students(TZ5
720,622,143,205 for local undergraduate, TZ5 1,298,349,065 for postgraduates, TIS
258,236,728 for Overseas and TI5 3,441,486,605 for Diploma students. In addition, along
with the amount of loans disbursed to students, there is also an amount of TZ3 5,844, 067,172
was dishursed to students for SAMIA Scholarship,

Overall, the issuance of loans has depicted an increasing trend from 132,388 students in
2019/20 to 224,056 in 2023/ 24 as shown below.

Cantraller and Auditor General AR/PAMESLB/20Z3/24
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Financial Year First-Yeoar ~  Cont. Students __Total
i 2023424 79,13  B2,585 224,056
7021713 73,513 124592 198,105
2021/22 60,341 108,551 177892
2020/ 55,337 = 94,169 149,506
2019720 49,803 B7,585 | 132,388
Source: HESLB
-
2.314 LOAN REPAYMENT AND RECOVERY
During the financial year 2023/74, HESLE targeted to collect TIS 200 billion from due loans by
using various strategic interventions. For the year 2023/74, HESLE Management managed to
enllect TIS 173,722,737,861 from due loans and TZ5 2,884,519,846 from Loan Administration
Fees (87% of the collection targets), which resulted into an average monthly collection of TIS
14,72 hillion, During the period under review, the effective tracing and billing were 54362
(135.91%) beneficiaries out of given target af 40,000 beneficiaries and inspected 8842
{110.52%) employers for ensuring compliance oul of given target of B0OD employers.
Moreover, cumulatively recovery amounted to TZ5 1.48 trillion by June 2024, This is 70% of
the due loans of TI5 2.10 trillion. Mon-performing loan (NFL) has increased stightly from 26%
in 2023/24 to 30%.
Table 11; Summary of Annual Perfarmance
023714 01E
M Purtoatart == o i
Tarpet aeiual EPh (%) Targat henml “E'L
FHE 74,000 | S T Teom 73| o
[ 2 FRamber o Grant Studeris wan} gin | 14148 il wan | TR
P T Wi Wil Mol R L K
|+ | et Suwestin 17 Bt aaspr o | oean|  dmomnamo| 2a7ERSE | TR
5 sl [’T”;"'“t"'“'m 731,561,557,800 FT.ER0.TS 000 | WA | €54,000,000,000 r""""'“‘-’“"": AR
[ | ttumier af Traced Benefigintles g I E U T I 1
p | o lT AR 03,384,510,000 resmramam | P 195,000,000000 | 6%.806037,000 e
2 Tm_ﬁlﬂ';“"i’d: 208, 34,630,000 154,071 80,5 | TAE 281 360,000,000 | 151,527,727 470 e
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Sownrce: HESLE
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7.35 CHALLENGES & REMEDIAL ACTIONS, EMERGING ISSUES AND FUTURE OUTLOOK
CHALLEMGES
I, Slaw fund release from the gavernment and system compatibility issues.

Nitigation;

Management is working to address these through improved communication with stakehalders
and ongoing system enhancements.

. The informal sector, in particular, experiences low rates of loan repayment from
beneficiaries, which can be attributed to a lack of voluntary compliance from both
employers and the beneficiaries themselves.

Mitigations;

Management is devising a strategy to roll out the Community Agency Collections Channels
(CACCs) initiative, which will leverage Ward Executive Officers (WEOs) and selected
community resources Lo identify and interact with defaulters within the informal sector.

Establich an Informal Sector Help Desk to pravide specialized support and outreach, while also
leveraging the recently launched #FICHUA campaigh to encourage public participation in
identifying non-complying beneficiaries.

Enhance system integration with varipus stakeholders through the GovESE platform and
targeted specific entities, while also exploring more flexible repayment options tailored to
the irregular income patterns COMmMon in the informal sector.

2.36 EMERGING ISSUES

Management is keeping an eye on new develapments in higher education financing and
adjusting its approaches to stay current. This involves investigating innovative technologies,
approaches, structures and financing mechanisms to improve student support.

These new developments are aimed at making education more accessible, reducing the
burden of student debt, and aligning financing models with the evalving needs of students
and the economy. Some of these developments include;

. Income Share Agreements (I5As)

Instead of traditional loans, 1SAs allow students to fund their education in exchange for a
percentage of their future income over a predetermined pericd. This madel shifts the risk
from the student to the investor and is contingent on the student’s earning ability after
graduation,

. Outcome-Based Financing

AR/PAHESLE/2023/24
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This model ties financing o the success of the educational program or institution, often
measured by graduate employment rates or ather success metrics. It incentivizes institutions
1o focus an student autcomes and can lead to more accountable and effective education.

il Digital Platforms and Fintech Solutions
The rse of fintech has led to the development of digital platforms that streamiline the
process of applying for financial aid, managing student loans, and providing personalized
eioancial advice to students. These platforms often use data analytics and machine learming to
offer more tailored services.

fy, Crowdfunding and Donor-Based Models

Crawdfunding platforms and donor-based initiatives are hecoming mare popular as alternative
cources of funding for higher education. These models can help students raise funds for their
sducation from a wide netwark of supporters, including family, friends, and commumnity
members through savings schemes.

V. Employer-Based Financing

some employers are investing in their employees higher education as a way to develap the
skills needed for thelr workforce. This can take the form of tuition reimbursement programs,
partnerships with educational institutions, or creating in-house training and development

programs.
vl. Incubation Centers

Also known as business incubators, are specialized facilities thal provide startups and
entreprencurs with the essential resources and support they need to succeed. These
resources can include physical space, mentoring, training, netwarking opportunities, and
aceess to funding. Incubation centers aim to facilitate the success of pntrepreneurs and thedr
husinesses, ultimately helping them to grow and become self-sustaining.

vil.  Flexible Repayment Options for Informal Sector Beneficiaries

The irregular income patiems in the informal sector make it difficult for beneficlaries 10
adhere to standard repayment schedules. This underscores the imporiance of creating and
providing more adaptable repayment options that align with the income fluctuations of those
working in the informal sectar. such options might involve adjustable repayment calendars of
repayment schemies linked ta income levels,

These developments reflect a broader shift towards more flewible, innovative, and cutcomes-
focused approaches to financing higher education, As the landscape continues to evolve, its
likely that we will see even mare creative solutions e the challenges of funding post-
secandary education.

controller and Auditor General AR/PA/HESLE/2023/24
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2.37 FUTURE QUTLOOR
I, Strategic Priorities

In the upcoming year, HESLE's strategic focus will include advancing digital credit recovery
gystems, fortifying alliances for better loan dishursement and recovery, executing the #Fichua
campaign, sustaining emphasis on priority disciplines by extending support to diploma
students, exploring new higher education financing alternatives through public-private ”
partnerships, reviewing the impact of the HEET project and proposing emerging arcas for
additional financing, continuing with the construction of HESLE' HO office in Dodomda,
implementing recommendations from the comprehensive evaluation of HESLB, and revising
the strategic plan. These objectives ars designed to capitalize on the achievements of
2073/24 and to guarantee enduring Progress and enhancement n the financing of higher
education.

II.  Long Term Outlook

Management aims to harmess {nnovative tachnologies and strategies to enhance student
support, with the follawing oULComas,

a. Enhanced Accessibility and Convenience

By creating mobile applications or online platforms, students will be able to apply for loans,
monitor their loan status, and make repayments with ease and convenience

b. Advanced Eligibility Assessment and Risk Management

Through the use of Al, HESLE will implement predictive analytics to streamline loan eligibility
assessments, effectively manage risks, and tailor student support services to individual needs.

c. Optimized Loan Allocation and Recovery

Machine learning algorithms will be employed to analyse data, leading to more efficient loan
distribution and cellection processes

d. Informed Strategic Decisions

Data analytics tools will be utilized to provide insights into student performance, loan
repayment pattemns, and market trends, guiding strategic dacision-making.

e. Simplified Transactions

Integration with digital payment solutlons will enable seamless and secure transactions for
loan disbursements and repayments.

controller and Auditor General AR/PA/HESLB/2023/24
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{ Real-Time Monitoring and Data Collection

laT devices will be deployed to gather real-time data and monitor the loan lifecycle,
enhancing aversight and responsivensss.

g. Instant Support and Information

Al-driven chatbots will be introduced to offer immediate assistance and infarmation to
students and loan beneficiaries, fmproving customer service.

h. Financial Discipline and Sustainability

By integrating savings schemes and encouraging regular savings amang beneficiaries, HESLB
will promote financial discipline and stability, potentially creating an additional funding
source and reinforcing its financial sustainability.

I Workforce Readiness and Diversified Funding

Engaging with the privale cectar will lead to co-funding schemes, internship programs, and
skills development initiatives that align with industry requirements, bridging the gap betweesn
academic institutions and the job market, and diversifying HESLE's funding sources.

2 38 LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENT

The HESLE is a provider and collector of loans issued to needy and eligible students who
secure admission to accredited higher learming smstitutions. The HESLE reports to the Ministry
aof Education, Science, and Technology and is supposed to comply with the Government of the
United Republic of Tanzania's procedures and laws of the land. The functions of the HESLE are
guided by the established Act (The Higher Education Students’ Loans Board Act CAP 178 and
its Regulations. During the year under review, the HESLB complied with applicable laws. In
conducting its activities, HESLE ensured compliance with the application of other legal
requirements, including Value Added Tax (VAT), Pay as You Earn (PAYE), and withholding tax.

2.39 ENVIROMMENTAL CONTROL PROGRAM

The HESLE menitors the impact of its operations on the environment, which is mainly by
power, water and waste generation in compliance with Government’s Environmental
Mmanagement Act of 2004. The Act is executed by the Mational Emvironment Management
Council (MEMC) that ensure sustainability, security and equitable use of resgurces for meeting
the basic needs of the present and future generations without degrading the epvironment or
risking health or safety by implementation of the Mational Environment Policy. HESLB
minimize its Impacks through the better use of its premises and inbuilt facilities to ensure
that there fs proper waste management. In addition, HESLB engaged in activities that support
efforts towards environmental stability, by engaging in conservation activities agreed upen
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from time to time as well as any ather activity -deemed to support financing of higher
education, also Management has decided to practice paperless emvironment and conservye its
surrounding.

2.40  RISK MAMAGEMENT AMD INTERMAL CONTROLS

The Board of Director understands the specific sources af risk and analysis of their impact on
its operations to HESLE. In the financial year 2073/24, the Bab used risk assessment
frameworks to enable the analysis of cost-effective mitigation strategies.

2.40.1 RISK MANAGEMENT

Rick is an inherent aspect of any institution's activities. The Higher Education Students’ Loans
Board (HESLB) strives to manage risk through the establishment of effective functional
structures, systems, and procedures.

HESLE Risk management framewnark sets out the Organization’s approach to managing risks
and internal controls in a consistent and business-oriented manner, in order to support the
achievement of its strategic objectives and expected results.

Ta this end, the HESLE has formed a Risk Management Team responsible for daily risk
monitoring and management. This team operates under the Assistant Director of Flanning &
Research and includes risk champians from various functienal.

The Risk Management Team cOnvEnes regularly to assess risks impacting HESLES operations
and subsequently recommends mitigation strategies to the Audit and Risk Commitiee (ARC) of
the Board of Directors (BoD). The activities of the Risk Management Team are guided by the
Risk Management Framework of 2023.

The following outlines the primary types of risks to which the HESLE i3 exposed in the course
of its operations:

Financial Risks

Financial risk arises when the Higher Education students Loans Board {HESLE) Is unable to
meet its obligations as they come due. This may include the failure to {ssue loan items on
scheduled dates, which can result from delays in the disbursement of funds from ke
Exchequer, or the inability to recover Loans, thereby impacting the creation and sustainability
of a revolving fund.

HESLE manage financial risk by identify the nature of risk exposure; conduct 3 risk assessment
to know the potential weaknesses and threats facing the board, analyze financial statements
to jdentify potential threats to financial stability such as dropping revenues, potential
operational weaknesses of increasing bad debts. Develop <trateghes to address the risks.

Controller and Auditor General AR/PAHESLB/2023/24
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HESLE mitigation strategies include proper verification of documents before processing
ents, conduct training on tax Laws and d professional development, and making frequent
reconciliation of financial data in MUSE system.

Strategic Risks

Strategic risks are defined as the uncertainties and untapped opportunitics tnherent in the
Higher Education Srudents Loans Board's (HESLB) strategic intent and its execution. These

risks are crucial for the Board to address, as they impact the organization as a whole rathar

than just a single unit.

HESLB's stratedic risk management invoives addressing these uncertainties and opportunities
by gaining a clear understanding of corporate strategy, the risks assnciated with adopting it,
and the risks involved in 1ts execution, These risks may arise from beth internal and external
eources. By comprehending these risks, HESLE can develop and implement effective and
integrated strategies for risk mitigation.

Rather than hindering the organization, strategie risk management enhances strategic
management and helps maximize the valuee derived from HESLB's strategy. For example,
while a traditional approach to strategy might focus en customer base growth and service
delivery, it often neglects Lo monitor the risks associated with a potential shortfall in
demand.,

Reputational Risks

Reputational risks refer to the potential for negative publicity, adverse public perception, or
uncontrollable events that could impact the organization's reputation. These risks stem from
faflures to meet minimum service standards in line with stakeholder expectations, as well as
from unethical practices within the organization,

Reputation is fundamentally about how the Higher Education students' Loans Board (HESLE) s
perceived by s service providers, customers in nigher learning institutions, and other key
stakeholders, including the government, the media, and the public.

HESLB manage reputation risk by building a positive corporate culture, prioritize transparency
and accountability, perform preliminary research, prepare a response strategy and respond
promptly and appropriately 1o negative feedback, monitar social media and make reputation
monitaring a regular practice.

Compliance Risks

Compliance risks arise from the potential for the Higher Education Students Loans Board
(HESLB) to fail in adhering to governing laws and regulations. This includes HESLE's statutory
obligations while fulfilling its responsibilities to stakeholders, with a primary focus on
CLstomers.
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ance through training and clear
organizational levels, streamline
d designate teams to manitor and

by promoting compli
untability across all

eommunicate regulatory updates.

Operational Risks

Opera

Board”
sepvices Lo stakeholde
ar failures in internal processes, which may |

HESLD tnanage operational risk by assessing
profile, identify and document rESOUTCES N2

comprehensive nsk assessment and put controls in place.

HESLE mitigation strategies in
knowledge and awareness), mon
of staff roles, improve o
realistic staff budget programme a

Table 17: HESLB KEY RISKS

tiagnal risks are
g (HESLB) func

tions and pertain te the day-to-day

associated with the execution of the Higher Education Students Loans
operations invalved in delivering
. These rigks can lead to direct or indirect losses due to inadequacies

nclede human factors or external events.

the impact, understand HESLE operational risk
eded, undertake scenario analysis, conduct a

lude eonducting trainings (capacity building, transfer of
itor daily/manthly staff working, have a clear understanding
perational budget, mprove incentive package, preparation of
nd strengthening monitoring and supervision.

SN RISK | RISK CATEGORY RATING [  MITIGATION |
_i. ToEnhance an e-MGE system _____
H. To Conduct follow-up an implementation at
R cost centers . ..
Ineffective fii.  ToScrutinization of performance data
1. “':E‘E:t““m‘““ Strategic Risks High |t  ToSolich additional funding . —
af Strategic v, To Conduct training to budget officers and
P . headsof costcenters
vi.  To Raise awareness n implementing the
___ Strategic Plan and MTEF B
- _wif. _To analysts of re-nilocation before approvats
Ineffective _ . Increase efforts on Revenue collections
8 liguidity Financial Risks High [ T S
|| management : ii. Reviving investment unit to enhance ROl ____
l f. Improved ance. competence, quality of
service delivery and promotion of zero
Misconception | eeoutational e to cornuption during service delivery
3 of HESLE H'iEEP:‘M ona High | i increase oulreach awareness programs
services | ii. Existence of communication strategy 2
| v, Existence customer help desk E——
R Manitor the usage of social Mmedia _]
Failurs corfmplies i, Totrain staff on rights, duties and obligations
4. with laws, rules | Compliance Risks High on public service
and regulations | =~ } i, Totrain staff on contract managament
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o . ToSesk MoEST views early in the process
Delay in issuing L " %
5. guideline and | Operational Risks | High i, ToPublicize the activity to make the public
eriteria ready to give their opinion ____
. Increase effort in collecting stakeholder's
| ] | l:u:l'in_iun

2.41 INTERMAL CONTROLS

The internal controd system of the Higher Education Students Loans Board (HESLB) is the
responsibility of management Lo ensure that effective internal control systems are developed
and maintained on an ongoing basis. This system aims to provide reasonable assurance
regarding;

| The effectiveness and efficiency of HESLE operations;

fi. The safeguarding of HESLB's assets;

iii. Compliance with applicable laws and regulations;

iv. The reliability of accounting records;

v. Business sustainability under both normal and abnormal conditions; and

vi. Responsible behavior towards all stakeholders.

The effectiveness of any internal control system depends on the strict adherence LoD
prescribed measures. There is always a risk of non-compliance by staff. While no internal
control system can offer absolute assurance against misstatemments or losses, HESLB's internal
control framework is designed to provide the Board with reasonable assurance that the
procedures in place are functioning effectively.

The Board of Directors evaluates the internal control systems throughout the financial year
ending 30 June 2024 to ensure they meet accepted criterla. Risk amd intermal control
assessments are managed by the Audit and Risk Committee. The key elements of the internal
cantrol system are as follows;

i. Competence

Staff skills are maintained through a formal recruitment process and a performance appralsal
system, which helps identify training and development needs,  Additionally, necessary
training—both in-house and pxternal—supports the consolidation and enhancement of existing
staff skills and competencies.

ii. Delegation

The overall ohjectives of the HEGLE are established by the Board of Directors, which
delegates day-to-day operations to Management for implementation. The organization has a
clearly defined structure, outlining lines of autharity and ensuring proper segregation of
duties.

Controllar and Auditor General AR/PAHESLE/2023/14
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jii. Budgels
Detailed budgets are prepared by management for review by the Board of Directars and are

subsequently approved by parliament. These annual budgets are farmulated based on the
HESLE's corporate plan.

v, Internal Audit

The internal Audit and Investigation Directorate has significantly eontributed to HESLE
Management since its pstablishment. Its key services include;

+ Assessing the organization’s risk and the effectiveness of its risk management efforts.

=« Evaluating the potential for f raud and the organization’s management of fraud risk.

+ Identifying signs and possibilities of fraud within the organization and addressing these
fssues through audit and investigation.

+ Assisting Management in determining whether the arganization has adequate internal
controls and is compliant with organization policies and government regulations.

« Ensuring that recommendations made to Management for improving controls are
implemented.

v, Compliance

4 detailed assessment is conducted continuously to ensuré that HESLE operations are in
compliance with all applicable laws, rules, and regulathons,

2.42 FUTURE DEVELOPMENT PLAMS

HESLE remains confident that with the available resources obtained from the Government and
the continued effart for etudents’ loan recovery it will be able to fulfil its strategic objectives
through ensuring that education sectar in general and the area of higher education skiident
financing s becoming more effective and efficient. The specific future development plans

are; -

i lssue Loans and grants to g7, 204 tertiary education students.

ii.  Collect TZ5 1.130 wrillion comprising TZS &44 billion from benaficiaries working in
Public Institutions and TIS 486 billion from beneficiaries waorking in Private
arganizations) by June 2027 and implement measures to reduce Loan defaulter
rates and enhance customer refund sattlements,

i,  Acquiring 277 staff level, retaining, providing welfare services and having 10 staff
meetings conducted by June 2027,

v, Organizing two Fundraising writings, Initiatives and events conducted to strategic
partners for soliciting loanable funds and scholarships data bank,
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vy, Conducting 10 researches on HESLE business processas,
vi. Increase public awareness on HESLE business and strengthen strategic partnership
v,  Develop and operationalize Risk Management and Business Continuity Plan,

viii.  Enhance Primary data center by 90%, operationalize disaster recavery site and
canduct 20 quarterly reviews of data center equipment by June 2017

ix. Link 10 external systems, and Higher Education Institutions to internal system by
100% also implement ICT security reviews and controls,

x. Manage Institutional Assets and review accounting manual and financial
regulations,

xi.  Implement the approved 5™ Strategic Flan (2022/23 - 2026/2027) from July 2022 to
accelerate gains from the just ended Strategic Plan guided by the same themes
names; Financial and Equity Management (FEM), Customers Relationship
Management (CRM), Business Processes and Result Management [(BPRM) and
Organization Capacity and Growth (QCAG),

«ii.  Establish the customized Monitoring, Evaluation and Learming {MEL) tool, which will
capture implementation of KPle for results management to improve tracking and
monitoring af activities implementation,

«fl.  Undertake HESLB office construction project for the sic-storey building  at
Niedengwa area in Dodoma,

xiv. Manage a fleet of 15 vehicles in a year and expand to a fleet of 20 vehicles by the
next financial year (2025/2026],

wv.  Develop Memorandum of Understanding (Mol) with N55F and PSSSF for the purpase
of data and information sharing.

2.43  DIVERSITY MANAGEMENT

HESLE is an equal opportunity employer, provides equal consideration to employment
opportunities and ensures that the best available human resource appointed or promoted to
any given position free from discrimination of any kind and without regard to lactors like
marital status, gender, tribe, age, religion or disability.

It has been constantly considering gender equality n terms of employment. In the year under
review achieved 102% of the desired manning level of 277 staff with employses’ turnover at
1.2% during the period, which 15 less than a tolerable 10-15%; Majority of Staffl are young
adults ranging 30-39 years of age. fut of the entire staff base, 43% are female and 57% are
male.

“Gamder _202A/54 __ t02iiad

Mae 161 148
remalu 11 114
Tatal ZhE 164

Controller and Auditor Ganeral ARPAMESLB 1023724

58



- - - - - # o

% =" HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS’ LOANS BOARD

A
-
i¥

2.44 EMPLOYEES WELFARE
9. 44, 1 Management and Employees’ Relationship

The relationship betwsen the Management and employees was good. Generally, during the
year, HESLB continued to experience harmonious and healthy work relationships at all levels
and no labour grievances or any kindly of dissatisfaction were reported.

71.44,2 Medical Assistance

All Members of the Staff and their dependants were provided with health insurance services
governed under the Mational Health Insurance Fund (NHIF). In additien, the entity has NHIF
supplementary packages which covers all health service which are not covered through NHIF
compulsory packages.

2.44,3 Health intervention and Sports Bonanza programs

Two Healthy interventions and Sports Bananza programs were conducted during the second
and fourth quarter of the year under review, During the first quarter a total of 141 staff were
trained an HIV and non-communicable diseases while 152 staff were trained during the fourth
guarter. In addition, to promote a healthy lifestyle, HESLB staff were encouraged and
facilitated to participate in the MOl marathon (21 staff), 13 staff in MBC marathon and 16
staff in Bunge Marathon.

2.44.4 Employees Participation’s and performance monitoring

Directarates and Units continued to hald mestings in order to assess performance and pravide
feedback on varipus operational and administrative matters on monthly basis. Further the
entity stated to implement the Public Employees Performance Management Information
system (PEPMIS) in monitoring performance of its employees, In the area of employee
engagement twa Worker's Council meetings and two all-staff meetings were held. Further,
the Management continued to hold its monthly meetings for performance manitoring (EXCOM
Meetings). Also, all staff were also involved in the HESLE Breakfast Chat (HBC) which was
conducted twice a week (Tuesday and Thursday) used as a platfarm for providing necessary
infarmation and discussion to all HESLE staff,

2.44.5 Staff Leave Roster Management

The Management continued to coordinate and manage staff leaves as per procedures
governing leave in the Public Service. All staff went for annual leave, 11 fenale staff went for
maternity leave, § male staff went for paternity leave and B staff were given compassionate
leave.

Cantroller and Auditor General AR/PAMHESLE/2023/24
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2.44.6 Recruitment and staff Promotions

During the period under review, twenly-one {21} new staff were recruited, whereby thirteen
(13} are male and eight (03) are female.

In realising staff career development and growth, eighty-one, (81) staff were promoted,
eighteen {18) re-categorized and fifty (50) confirmed te continue their service with HESLE

following the successful completion of the secondment period.

7.44.7 Mew Staff Regulation

The Government, through President's Office Public Service Management and Good
Gavernance has approved HESLE staff Regulation. This new staff Regulation replaces the old
craff Service Manual which has been used since 2016,

7.44.8 Financial Assistance to Staff

HESLEB Staff Loans are available to all confirmed employees threugh Board Revolving Fund
depending on the assessment by Management of the need, circumstance and ability to make
payment in accardance with the existing Board's Staff Regulations. Further, the established
HESLB's SACCOS keeps assisting ctaff in promoting the wellare of its members.

2.44.9 Training

Faor the purpose of ensuring that, learning and development it well managed at HESLE, a total
of forty (40) different trainings including workshops, tailor made training, seminars, long-
term trainings and study tour Were successfully implemented during the period. Further staff
continued to be involved in the HESLE Breakfast Chat - HBL exchanging knowledge and
sharing lessons learnt an datly operations. During the financial year, 2023/74 a total of forty
different trainings and seminars conducted as detalled hereunder:

Table 13: Staff Trainings
S/N | Training attended | Mo of staff
1| MesT Training for PAL Staff . 4
2 | Capacity Building Trainkrg for Lawyers | i
3 [ HR Proficiency Training : , 1
‘4 | Leadership Training for Managers i)
5 | Workshop on Practical IT Audit | L
6 | Capacity Building Training for RAAWU ] | 3
7 | Advanced Training on public Relation and Custamer Experfence Competencies | 24
8 I_Tr-uirﬂrg Retirement Preparation 15
% | Seminar on Accounting, Audit and 1CT | 11
10 | Seminar on Management Accounting and Performance _ 1
11 | Leadership Training for Officers. B =3 0
12 | Training Internet and Communication Service 7
13 | Seminar for pen-accountant DOfficars | E
14 | Customer Care Training_
15 | Annual conference for Accountants ' 2
Controller and Auditor General AR/PAJHESLE/2023/24
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S/N | Training attended = = [ Mo of staff |
16 | Postgraduate Diploma in Leadership. 1
17 | Peer Educators Training on Health Is5Ues _ 14
18 | Remedial Seminar for Accounting and Auditing issuUes 4
19 | Chief Audit Executive Forum _ 2 : 3
20 l Training on System Security and hdminiskration -4
11 | HIV/AIDs awareness Training ] _ - 173
21 | Procurement and Supplies Annual Conference =
23 | Masters Trainings _ [ B
24 _| Records & Archives Management Professtonal Association 3
25 | Induction Course 13
26 | Training for Government Lawyers ) 1
i | Training an Procuremerit tased on WB Procedures : 1
28 | Training on understanding various laws, regulations and standards 1
2 | Internal Audit Guality Assessment Training =
30 [ Excel Training on Data Analytics . 9
31 | TAPSEA ! 7
32 | Lavyers Annual Meeting | -]
33 | Preduction of Media Education Program ] 2
34 | Project Mahagement Training 3
35 | Leadership Training (3wazl land) | 1o
36 | Leadership Training for Sentor Staff { 9
37 | Customer Care Training for Officars | 18
38 | Trafning on Sophos Firewalls { 1
39 | Deep Dive Flatter Application Development _ | 1
40 | HesT Traiming for ather Directborates | 3

2.45 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

HESLB is an entity under the control of the Ministry of Education Science & Technology, and
the ministry is under the Government of United Republic of Tanzania. HESLE doesn't control
another entity. All related party transactions and balances between the entily, controlling
parties and key management personnel are disclosed in note 3.11 of the financial statements.

2.46 PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

It is the policy of the HESLE not to discriminate persoins with dizability in the recruitment or
appointment. HESLE sdhere to Disability Policy of 2007.

2.47 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

During the year under review, HESLBE made donations to support flood victims caused by
Heawvy rainfall in Hanang District in Manyara Region amounting Lo TI5 10,000,000, Alsc TZS5
3,000,000 was donated to Tanzania Higher Learning Institutions Students’ Organisation
(TAHLISO) to support its Annual General Meeting.

7.48 POLITICAL DONATIONS

HESLE did not make any political donations during the year.
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7.49 PREJUDICIAL MATTERS

Prejudicial matters for the year ended 30 June 7024, has been disclosed in note 13 of the
financial statements as required by Tanzania Financial Reporting Standard (TFRS) number 1.

2.50 INTEGRATED FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

During the year under review, HESLE continued to process its financial data using Government
Accounting system (MUSE) integrated with ILMS, GePG, GAMIS, NeST, and PlanRep.

MUSE is a gpovernment accounting system (Mfuma wa Uhasibu Serikalini) which process
financial transactions, reconcile, prepare financial staternents and enhance financial control,

JLMS is an internal loans Management system which process loans applications, disbursement,
repayment and recovery,

GePG s a Government Electronic Payment Gateway, centralized system connected to all
available electronic revenue collection channels for the process of facilitating electronic
maney transacticns from the public to gavernment and vice versa,

GAMIS 15 a Government Asset Management information System usad to maintain fixed asset
register,

MeST is a Hational a-Procurement System of Tanzania, supports processes of procuring Goods,
works, Consultancy, Han-Consultancy and Disposal of assets and

PlanRep is a system that acts a5 a planning, budgsting and reporting tool for government
entities. PlanRep enhance budgetary control.

2.51 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The Directors’ report has been prepared in full compliance with Tanzania Financial Reporting
Standards Mo 1 and other statutory legislations relevant to HESLE business environment.

387  PUBLICATION OF THE REPORT

HESLE publish in its official website the report by those charged with govarnance alongside
with audited financial statements not later than 30 days after the approval of the audited
financial statements as per the requirements of the MBAA Technical Pronouncement No.1 of
2018,

7,53 APPOINTMENT AND RESPONSIBILITY OF AUDITOR
The Controller and Auditor General (CAG) is the statutory suditar of HESLE by virtue of Article

143 of the Constitution of the United Republic of Tanzania as amplified under section 10 {1)
of the Public Audit Act No. 11 of 2008, Cap 418 (R.E. 2021).

Controfler and Auditor General AR/PA/HESLB/Z023/14
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C4G is responsible for provision of audit opinion an HESLRs' financial statements about
falrmess on presentation and conststency application for information contained in the report
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3.0 STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPOMSIBILITY FOR PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EMDED 30 JUNE 2024

Members of the Board are required under eaction 27 (1) of the HESLE Act (No.9) of 004 1o
prepare Financial statements of each reporting period which gives a true and fair view of
statement of financial performance, statement of financial position, statement of cash flow,
statement of changes In equity, statement of comparison of budget against actual and notes Lo

the financial statements of HESLE as at the end of the financial year that give a true and fair”

view of the state of affairs of the HESLE. Further, the Board accepts responsibility for the
maintenance of accounting records that may be relied upon in the preparation of financial
sratements, as well as adequate systems of internal financial control, The board 15 responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the reporting entity and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud, error and other irregularities.

The Board accepts responsibility for the annual financial ctatements, which have been
prepared using appropriate accounting  policies supported by reasonable and prudent
judgments and estimates, in conformity with the accrual basis, |nternational Public Sector
Accounting Standard (IFSAS], in the manner required by the Section 25(24) of the Public
Finance Act Cap 348 and HESLB Act No. g of 2004, Board members hereby confirm that suitable
accounting policies have been usad and applied consistently, and that reasonable and prudent
judgments and estimates have been made in the preparation of the financial statements for
the year ended 30 June 024,

To the best of our knowledge, the system of internal control has operated adequately
throughout the reporting period and that the records and underlying accounts provide a
reasanable basis for the preparation of the financial statement for the 2023714 financial year.
We accept responsibility for the integrity of the Financial Statement and the information
contained in it, and its compliance with the Public Finance Act Ho. & of 2001 (Revised, 2004)
and other instructions from the Treasury.

Procurement of gonds, works, consultancy, and non-consullancy services to the extent that
they are reflected in these financial statements have been done in accordance with the Public
Procurement Act CAP 410, The board believes the financial <tatements give a true and fair
view of the state of financial affairs of the HESLE. Nothing has come to the attention of the
Board to indicate that the HESLE will ot remain & going cancern for at least the next twelve
monkhs from the of this statement.

BY ORDER OF

Chedouwnde

Directar

controller and Auditor General AR/PA/MESLB/ 2023724
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4.0 DECLARATION OF HEAD OF FINANCE OF HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOAN FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUME 2024

The Mational Board of Accountants and Auditors (NBAA) according to the power conferred
undar the Auditors and Accountants {Registration} Act, Ho. 33 of 1972, as amended by Act Ho.
7 of 1995, requires financial statements ta be accompanied with a declaration issued by the
Head of Finance responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the entity

concemead.

it is the duty of a Professional Accountant to assist the Board of Directors to discharge the
respensibility of preparing financial statements of an entity showing true and fair view of the
entity position and performance in accordance with Acerual Based IPSAS and statutery financial
reporting requirements. Full legal responsibility for the preparation of financial statements
rests with the Board of Directors as URGEr directors’ responsibility staternent on an earlier

page.

|, Brown shimwela, being the Chief Accountant of the Higher Education students' Loans Board
(HESLB) hereby acknowledge my responsibility of ensuring that financial statements for the
year ended 30 June 7024 have been prepared in compliance with applicable accounting
standards and statutery requirements.

| thus confirm that the sinancial statements give a true and fair view position of the Higher
Education Students’ Loans Board (HESLE) as on thal date and that they have heen prepared
hased on properly maintained financial records.

2™ e

Date
Chief Accountant
HBAA Membership Nei H_C"pﬁ AR5ED
Controller and Auditor General AR/PAIHESLB/ 2023724
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5.0  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNKE 1024

Particulars Hotes 1%“ ;.iuzlg]
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 6 42,193,460,078 120,441,188,109
Students Loans Receivable 7 201.,918,836.014 171,014, 614,312
Prepayments 8 251,546,710 19,795,468
Other Receivables 7 16,424,097,500 24,730,133 ,957
Inventories (Consumable Stores) 10 244,019,096 169,931,645
Assats held for sale 11 13,898,667 -
Total Current Assets 1&1@15,355,&&5 316,375,663,491
Mon - Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 12 7,434,137,663 5,308,696,500
Wark in Progress (Building) 12 11,104,792, 377 &, 814,404 960
Intangible Assets 13 534,379,080 353,479,599
Students’ Loans Receivable Fa 4 503,133,374, 567 4,004,740,990,826
Total Non-Current Assets 4I51111I]_ﬁl?.‘!3!&ﬂ? 4,017, 217,573,894
Total Assets & _,TIH,IE‘I.H1 751 4,333.593!13?!3!:&
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables and Accruals 14 16,105,322,096 32,2856,925,209
Deferred Income Payable 13 1,843 846,066 _2,257,621,004
Total Current Liabilities 17,949 168, 162 34,544 546 302
Mon - Current Liabilities
Borrowing 16 187,767,046, 750 187,767,045,750
Mon - Current Liabilities _ 187,767,046,750 187,767 ,046,750
Total Liabilities __205,716,214,913_ 222,311,593,053_
Met Assels :{;,5??,?3&,41&.539 ] 4 111,281,644 333
MET ASSETS/EQUITY
Capital Contributed by:
Funds Received for Issuing Loans f 423 899,647 815 5,777,619,086,066
Recovered Students’ Loans - Pre HESLE 53, 779,101,186 53,779,101,166
Transfer to Consolidated Fund (1,456,775,009,665) (1,288 127 310,991}
Staff Loans Revolving Funds 1,661, 772,957 1,597,530,146
Accumulated Surplus/ (Deficits) (446,029,085,433) (433 586,762,053)
Total Het Assets/Equity 4,577,536,426 819 4,111,281,644,333

Hotes form part of

___and signed on its behalfl by:

Prof. Hamisi 0. Dihenga
Chairperson

Dr, Bill M. Kiwia

inancial statements, These financial statements were approved by the

Executive Director

&6

Controller and Auditor General ARJPAIMESLES 2023724



HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD [HESLE)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Particulars

Revenues from non-Exchange Transactions
Fees, fines, penalties and Forfeits
Government, Subwention

Subvention from other Government entitles
Revenue Grants

sub Total

Revenues fram Exchange Transactions
Students Loan Administration Fee
Other Income

Sub Total Receipts

Total Receipts

Expenses;

Calaries, Wages and Employment Benefils
Goads and Service

Depreciation and Amortization

Maintenance Bxponses

Other Expenses

Grants, Subdidies and other Transfer Payments
Student’s Grant payments

Expected Credit Loss

Accrued expenses for 2022723 paid in 202324
Total Expenses

Surplus/{Deficit) During the year

Hotes

17
18
19

22

24
25
26
7
28
9

2024 2023

TZ5 Ti5
130,379,247 34,405,569
19,184,121,272 15,915,841,071
4,165,950,668 3,714,326, 735
43 480,451,187 19,674,573,375
7,276,202,156 i, 3400, 536,948
5,878, 445,351 3,019,271, 700
13,154,647 507 0,369, 810 A48
56,635,098, 694 39,044,384,023
15,106,520,047 11,203,688 052
16,978,662,314 13,573,997,51
735,926,063 951,745,154
794 872 BI6 347,530,550
919,687 376 2,745,591,213
230,000,000 7
5,844 067,172 2,377,845,975
28,967 686,175 641,802,479, 250
24 721,235

69,077,422,073
{12,442,323,179)

£93,027,578,951

(653,983,194,929)

Motes form part of the financial staterments. These financial statements were approved by the

Board of Directors on

A

Prof. Hamisi Q. Dihenga
Chairperson

Controller and Auditor General

and signed on its behalf by:

Dr.ﬁ M. Kiwia
Executive Director

AR/PAMHESLEFZ023/24
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

2024 1023

Particulars Hotes T7e TI%
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts:
Fees, fines, penalties and Forfeits 17 130,379,247 13,545 4569
Government Subvention 18 3E,770, 346,244 26,001,254, 779
Subvention from other Government entities 19 4 165,550, 468 3,714,326, 715
Increase in Deposit 3 - 2,130,873.230
Other Income EF, _ TAMATL T 5,403,66%,399
Total Receipts i 50,5}1,14!,&56 M
Payments:
Maintenance Expenses 5 204 872 B16 347,530,550
Grants, Subsidies and other Transfer Payments 27 230,000,000 -
Studenl's grants payment 1B 5,844,067 172 2,377 .845,973
Decrease in Deposit £ 2,076,743,873 -
Salaries, Wages and Employment Benefits 33 15,106,520,047 11,203,6848,0562
Goods and Service a4 23,058,316,092 17, IB0. 606 63T
Other Expenses 35 819 687 376 915,173,159
Total Payments 4?:5m,zmizaﬁ 47,133,864 413
Cash from/ {Used in) Dperating Activities [A) 41 &EWEQH‘IEQ !l'l-,?ﬁﬂﬂ‘!#tlﬂﬂt
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of PPE 12 12,820,730, 338) {1,185,334,051)
Office Budiding (WIF) 12 {4,290, 387 408} {4,542,511,200)
Sale of PPE . 10,860,100
Acquisition of Intangible Assets 11 (235,533,034) {78 668 T16)
Loans Issued to Students 36 (717,610,215 602) {6da, 145,301 695)

Cash from fiUsed in) Investing Activities (B) (734, 966,866, 382)

(651,942 057 561)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Funds Received for Issuing Loant 7 fdfi TR0, 561, T45
Becoverad Shudents’ Loans 18 173,722,737, &6
Seaff Loans Revelving Funds 19 1,064, 242,811
Transfer to Consolidated Fund i (163,647,698, 674)

Cash fromJ/ (Used in) Financing Acthvities () 652,419, 843,746

689,897, 135,850
167,431,639,321
(98,878, 453)

{151,527 747, 870)
TI:IS ?D?. 163 48

-

48,999,916,486
73,481,521,773

Het Increass in Cash and Cash Egquivalent (A+B+C) 47 T (79,556,081,367)
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the Beginning 121,481,438, 260
Cash amd Cash Equivalent at the End 111!?25!35-5: 893

Motes form part of
the Board of Db

and signed an its behalf by:

Prof. Hamisi 0. Dihenga

112,481,438, 260

financial statements. These finzncial statements were approved by

Dr B»1i.l H'. Hlma

Chairperson Executive Director

Controller and Awditor General
AR/PAMHESLBEZDII 24
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HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS’ LOANS BOARD [HESLE)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)  *
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

1. GEMERAL INFORMATION

The Higher Education Students’ Loans Board [HESLB) was established under Act No. 9 of 2004 (as
amended} CAP 178 for the purpose of providing for Students’ Loans Scheme which would not only
extend leans to students who require such assistance but also collect repayment for all loans issued
to students since 1994 for re-lending to other needy and eligible students. HESLE is Parastatal
Organization currently under the Ministry of Education, Sclence and Technology.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
2.1.1 Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared based on historic cost wnless stated otherwise. The
financial statements have been prepared in Tanzanian shillings, which is the functional and
reporting currency of HESLE, and all values are rounded to the nearest shilling.

2.1.2 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Higher Education Students” Loans Board (HESLE) have been
prepared in accordance with Public Finance Act of 2001 and explicitly comply with the
requirements of the accrual based International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The
accounting policies have been consistently applied in all the years presented.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTIMG POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IP3AS requires the use of estimates and
assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets, llabilities and disclosure of contingent asset
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenuss and
expenditures during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the directors” best
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates.
The estimates and underlving assumptions are reviewed on the ongoing basis, Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the ravision
affects only that period or in the period of revision and future period if the revisions affect both
current and future periods.

3.1 Reporting Period

The reporting period for these financial statements is the financial year of the Government which
runs from 01 July 2023 to 30 June 2024,

3.2  Foreign Currency Translation
3.2.1 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the HESLE are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the HESE operates ("the functional currency™). The

Contraller and Auditer General
ARMPAFHESLB/ 203374



HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD [HESLE)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)  °
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

financial statements are presented in Tanzanian Shillings {TZ5), which is the HESLBE's functional and
presentation currency,

3.2.2 Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Tanzanfan Shillings using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
aceets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are in the statement of financial
performance.

3.3 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and bark balances in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and in hand
and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, and is measured at
amortized cost, For the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdraft.

3.4 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Board has a present legal or constructive obligation because of
past events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and/or
service patential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the cbligation
can be made.

3.5 Employment Benefits

Employee benefits include salaries, pensions and other related - employment costs. Employee
henefits are recognized on accrual basis. HESLB operates a defined contribution plan, where the
employees contribute 5% of the basic salary and the employer contributes 15% of the salary.

Additionally, HESLB operates a health insurance plan for employees through a contribution of 3%
both by the employees and employer. The employee benefits plans are operated through statutary
established institutions.

3.6 Eevenue
3.6.1 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
entity and the revenue can be rellably measured. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer
returns, rebates and other similar allowances., Revenue of HESLE includes Interest Income,
Application Fees, Penalty on Repayment, Loan Administration fees and other Incame:

Emtfﬂlnr and Auditor General
ARPASHESLBIZOZI T4



HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD (HESLE)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) "
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

3.5.2 Interest Income

Interest income arises from different HESLB's bank accounts, i.e., interest on call and fixed depaosit
accounts. For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest-bearing financial
assets classified as avallable-for-sale, interest income ar expense is recorded using the effective
interest rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
aporopriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.

{.  Loan Application Fees

Revenue from loan application fees 1s collected and received when the Online Loan Application
System (OLAS) s opened in the respective year for the needy prospective students to apply. The
amount collected s accounted for on cash basis.

iil. Value Retention Fee (VRF)

Value Retention Fees is charge of 6% on outstanding leoan to every beneficiary, excepl to
beneficiaries who are academician who have been guaranteed by employers. This fee ceased
effective from 1™ May 2021 following Presidential decree.

iii. Penalty on Repayment

A penalty of 102 per annum #s imposed on the amount of loans need to be collected and late
remittance by emplover for loan instalment deducted and not remitted after 15" day of the
following month of deductions, also loan beneficiaries whose loan repayment has remained unpaid
for more than two years after a loan beneficiary has graduated. The charge ceased with effect
from 017 July, 2021 by the order of the Minister responsible for Education, Science and
Technalogy.

iv. Loan administration fees
The Fee is charged at a rate of 1% p.a. of the loan amount paid in every year,
v,  Other Income

Other income is recognized in the period in which It is earned. This includes gain on exchange rate
and tender documents,

1.7  Revenue
3.7.1 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue from non-exchange transactions is governed by IPSAS 23 and mainly comprises taxes and
transfers. Revenue from Mon- Exchange Transaction of the HESLE includes Government Subvention
through the Ministry of Education, Science and Technology ard grants from Doncrs,

| Controller and Auditor General
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HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD (HESLE)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)  °
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

31.7.2 Government Subvention

gubvention comprises of funds received from Treasury to cater for Persanal emoluments
(PE}/employees’ salaries and other operational costs. These are unconditional and therefore are
recognized and credited to the statement of financial performance in the period in which they are
received.

3.7.3 Grants

Grants comprises of Samia grant which is special grant started in financial year 2022/23 to sponsor
undergraduate studies for students achieving high perfarmance in Advanced Certificate of
secondary Education Examinations (ACSEE), science combinations and have locally secured
admizeion to undertake university degree in the fields of Science, Technology, Engineering,
Mathematics and Medicine. Samia grant is a hundred percent {100%) scholarship.

1.8  Property, Plant and Equipment {(PPE}
3.8.1 Recognition

An ftem of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) is recognised in Financial Statements when is being
controlled by the entity, it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential
associated with the asset will flow to the entity and the cost or fair value of the asset to the entily
can be reliably measurad.

3.8.2 De-recognition

The carrying amount of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized when asset is
dispasad; or when no future economic benefits or service potentials are expected from its use or
dizposal.

Gains and losses on de-recognition of Property, Plant and Equipment is determined by reference to
their carrying amount and is taken into account in the statement of financial performance.

3.8.3 Subsequent Expenditure

Expenditure incurred to replace a component of item of Property, Plant and Eguipment is
accounted for separately and capitalized only when the amount is material, it is probable that
future economic benefits or service potentials associated with the item will flow to the entity and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other expenditure items are recognized in the
statement of financial performance as expenses during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

1.8.4 Measurement

The entity measurement of its Property, Plant and Equipment complies with government regulation
on measurement base and capitalization threshold,

Controlier and Auditor General
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HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD (HESLE)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Confinued]  °
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Items of Property, Plant and Equipment acquired threugh purchases are initially recognized at cost
and subsequently measured at cost less Accumulated depreciation and impalrment losses.

ltems of Property, Plant and Equipment acquired through donation/grants are initially recognized
at fair value as deemed cost and subsequently measured at deemed cost less accumulated
depreciation and impalrment losses.

Donated PPE results in the recognition of income at the amount of the fair value of the PPE
received.

3.8.5 Depreciation

The entity adopt straight line method for depreciation of property, plant and equipment which
allocate depreciation systematically over the useful life of the respective assets. The depreciation
method adopted comply with government regulation for depreciation method.

Property, Plant and Equipment acquired are depreciated from the date when they are available for
use and cease to be depreciated when the asset are de-recognized in PPE howsver depreciation
does not cease when the asset become idle, or retired from active use,

3,8.6 Estimated Useful Life {(EUL)

Aceounting Estimates involve management’s judgment of expected future benefits and obligations
relating to assets and liabilities (and associated expense and revenue) based on infermation that
ket reflects the conditions and circumstances that exist at the reporting date. The following
Estimated useful life (EUL) which comply with Public Finance Act Regulation 2024 {Management of
Public Property) are consistently applied for accounting of Property, Plant and Equipment are as
shown in the below table.

3 he Estimated Useful Life for PPE
S/No, | Asset Category - Estimated Useful Life (Years)
1 Office Equipment and Machine B 10
2 Dffice Furniture and Fittings 10
3| Motor Vehicle (Light] . 10
4 Generator - 15

3.8.7 Review of useful life

The entity reviews asset useful life at least at each annual reporting date and, if expectations
differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for prospectively as a change in an
accounting estimate in accordance with IPSAS 3 requirement.

3.8.8 Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress related to the construction of office building i included in Property, Plant
and Equipment at cost an the basis of the percentage of completion as at the end of reporting

Controller and Auditor General
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HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS® LOANS BOARD [HESLE]
NOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

financial year. The capital work in progress s transferred to the appropriate assel category and
depreciated when construction of the asset is completed and Is available for its intended use.

3.9 Intangible Assets
3.9.1 Recognition

Intangible asset is recognized if an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance is
contralled by an entity as a result of past events, frem which future economic benefits are
expected to flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

1.9.2 De-recognition

Intangible asset is derecognized when no future economic benefits or service potentials are
expected from its use or disposal.

3.9.3 Measurement

Intangible assets acquired through exchange transactions are initially recognfzed at cost, The cost
of intangible assets acquired in a non- exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of the
exchange, Subsequently intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses.

31.9.4 Amortization, Estimated Useful Life (EUL) and its review

The useful life of the intangible assets Is assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with an indefinite life are not amortized instead they are assessed for impairment whenever there
fs an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Intangible assets relating to computer sofltware are amortized equally over a period of ten years.
Intangible assets with a finite useful life are assessed for impairment whenever there 15 an
indication that the amset may be impaired.

The amortization period and the amortization methad, for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life, are reviewed at the end of each reperting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered
to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortization expense on an intangible asset with a finfte life is
recognized in surplus or deficit as the expente category that is consistent with the nature of the
intangible asset,

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
surplus or deficit when the asset is derecognized.

1.9.5 Impairment of Mon-Financial Assets

Controller and Auditor General
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HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD (HESLB)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

(i} Impairment of cash-generating assets

At each reporting date, the Board assesses whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
HESLE estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
assets or cash-generating unit's fair value less costs ta sell and its value in use and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or HESLB"s of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset ar the cash-
generating unit (COU) exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and 15
written down to its recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market
transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of financial
performance in those expense categories consistent with the nature of the impaired asset,

{it) Impairment of non-cash-generating assets

The Board assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that a non-cash-
generating asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, the Board estimates the asset’s
recoverable service amount. An asset's recoverable service amount is the higher of the non-cash-
generating asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use,

Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, the asset i
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable service amount and impairment loss s
recognized in the statement of financial performance.

In assessing value in use, the Board has adopted the depreciation replacement cost approach,
Under this approach, the present value of the remaining service potential of an assat is determined
as the depreciated replacement cost of the asset. The depreciated replacement cost is measured
as the reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, whichever is lower, less accumulated
depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost, to reflect the already consumed or expired
service potential of the asset.

In determining fair value less costs to sell, the price of the assets in a binding agreement in an
arm’s length transaction, adjusted for incremental costs that would be directly attributed to the
dispasal of the asset is used. If there is no binding agreement, but the asset is traded on an active
market, fair value less cost to sell s the asset's market price less cost of dispesal. If there is no
binding sale agreement or active market for an asset, the Board determines fair value less cost to
sell based on the best available informatian.
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HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD (HESLE)
NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

3.10 Fipancial Instruments

Financial instrement s any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset of ane entity and a
financial Wability or equity instrument of another entity. The entity financial instruments comprise
of Bank Balances, Student Loans Recefvables and Staff Loans Receivables.

3.10.1 Classification

The entity financial Instruments (Financial assets) are classified into amortized cost which is
management model whose ohjective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows only and selling assets i3 incidental to management model objectives.

3,10.2 Recognition

HESLE recognizes a financial asset in jts statement of financial position when the enlity becomes
party to the contractual provisicns of the instrument and the passes the following tests.

i. Cash flow characteristic test

The eontractual terms of a financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

il. Management model test
The financial asset is held within a management model.
3.10.3 De-recognition

Derecognizes financial asset in its statement of financial position when doesn’t become party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument and cannot pass cash flow characteristic tests stated in
recognition criteria or it transfers the financial asset as set out and the transfer qualifies for de-
recognition in accordance with IPSAS 41,

3.10.4 Initial Measurement of Financial Assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset or financial liability is measured at fair value plus or minus
directly attributable transaction costs, unless short-term receivables which is at the original invoice
amount if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
arderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Directly attributable tramsaction cost is fncremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, lssue or disposal of a financial asset or financial Hability.

HESLE wses Level 2 (income approach) for its receivables fair value measurement and level 3 (Cost
approach) for cash balances.

'-.ll‘.'nnl.mHer and Auditor General
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HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD (HESLE)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

3.10.5 Subsequent Measurement of Financial Instruments

subsequently financial assets are classified at amortized costs. Each year the asset will increase
with the interest income credited to the surplus or deficit and decrease by the cash received. The
carrying amount of asset iz adjusted by credit loss allowance.

3.10.6 Impalrment of Financial Instruments

Impairment refers to the state that occurs when the fair value of an entity’s financial assets falls
below its book value.

HESLE evaluates the credit rsk of loans beneficiaries by estimating the delay of repayments and
beneficiaries’ future economic development. Depending on the estimated credit risk the entity
measures the loss allowance under General Approach whereby expected credit losses are measured
as either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses.

i. Credit Loss

Credit Loss: difference between all contractual cash flows due to entity in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls)
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

ii. Expected credit loss (ECL)

Expected credit loss (ECL): credit losses estimated to flow from a credit event, e.g., default;
calculated as the weighted average of credit losses, weighted by the probabilities of default.
An entity shall measure expectad credit losses of a financial instrument in a way that reflects;
a. An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes
B. The time value of money
c. Reasonable and supportable information that is available withoul undue cost or effort at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future,
For bank balances expected credit loss (ECL) is determined by using available statistics on banks’
default risk based on credit rating grades by Standard & Poor and Moody's credit rating companies.

fil. 12-month expected credit losses

12 - month expected credit loss is the portion of lifetime expected credit loss that represent the
expected credit losses that result from default events on financial instruments that are possible
within the 12 months after the reporting period.

iv. Life time expected credit loss

Life time expected credit loss s the expected credit loss that results from all possible default
evants over the expected life of a financial instrument.
Life time ECL is recegnized if the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.

Controller and Auditer Ganeral
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HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS’ LOANS BOARD (HESLE)
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) ’
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

3.11 Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party can control the other party individually or jointly,
or to exercite significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
They include relationship with subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and key Management
personnel. For HESLB, key management shall include; Members of Board of Directors, Executive
Director, Directors; Heads of ZIonal offices and thelr close relatives. Some of the Board’s
transactions and arrangements are with retated parties and the effect of these on the pasis
determined bebtween the parties are reflected in these financial statements. During the year, the
only related party transactions during the financial year ended 30" June 2021 was the
remuneration availed to the Board of Directors and key Management staff. During the year under
review, the Board of Directors and key Management Staff remuneration are summarized below:

Particulars 20324 2023
I ! - TZ5
I} Board of Directors
Allowances and Annual Directors' Fees 44,500,000 61,500,000
Total Board of Directors 44,500,000 61,500,000
Particulars 2024 2023
TI5 TIS
i} Emoluments to other Key Management Staff =
Salaries 1,731,500,274 1,380,000,000
Allowances 593,350,000 832,650,000
Total TIS " 2,324,850,274 2,212,650,000
ii) Loans to Key Management Staff
Farticulars 2024 2023
TS5 TIS
Housing/ Motor Vehicle Loans 768,243,562 154,280,000
Total TZ5 768,243,562 154,280,000

3.11 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantiatly all of
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases,

3.12.1 HESLB as Lessor

I. Amopunts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of
the Board's net fnvestment in the [eases. Finance lease income (s allocated to accounting

Centraller and Auditor Genaral

ARPAMHESLB/Z023/24



HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD (HESLB|
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [Confinued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Board's net investrment
outstanding in respect of the leases,

1.  Rental income from operating leases Is recognized on a straight-line basis over the Lerm of
the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotlating and arranging an operating
lease are added Lo the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

3.12.2 HESLB as Lessee

I.  Assets held under finance leases are recognized as assets of HESLE at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, al the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is Included in the statement of financial position as
a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and
reduction of the lease cbligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the lability. Finance charges are charged directly to statement af
financial performance, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which
case they are capitalized in accordance with the Eoard's geperal policy on borrowing Costs.
Contingent rentals are recognized as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

ll. Rentals payable under operating leases are charged as an expense to the statement of
financial performance on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognized as an expense in the period
in which they are incurred.

1.13 Inventorios

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of aperations, less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange, or distribution. However, where
inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, their cost shall be measured as their
fair value as at the date of acquisition. Inventories are required to be measured at the lower of
cost and current replacement cost where they are held for:

« Distribution at ne charge or for a nominal charge

« Consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a
nominal charge,

« Costs include all purchase cost, conversion cost (materfals, labour, and overhead), and
other costs to bring inventory te its present location and condition, but not foreign
exchange differences and selling costs. Trade discounts, rebates, and other similar items
are deducted in determining the costs of purchase,

« For inventory items that are not interchangeable, specific costs are attributed to the
specific individual items of inventaory,
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HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD [HESLE)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

« HESLB applies the same cost formula for all inventories having similar nature and use; a
difference in geographical location of inventories by itself is not sufficient to justify the use
of different cost formulas.

= For interchangeable items, cost is determined on a first-in, first-out basis. For inventories
with a different nature or use, different cost formulas are used.

= ‘When inventories are sold, exchanged, or distributed, the carrying amount is recognized as
an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognized. If there is no related
revenue, the expense is recognized when the goods are distributed or related services have
been rendered.

» ‘Write-downs to net realizable value are recognized as an expense in the pericd the loss or
the write-down occurs. Reversals arsing from an increase in net realizable value are
recognized as a reduction of the inventory expense in the period in which they eccur.

3.14 Mature and Purpose of Reserves

HESLB creates and maintains reserves to meet specific requirements. Reserves which have been
created include:

= Loanable Funds is the accumulated Government Subvention used for issuing loan to higher
learning studants.

& Recovered Students® Loans; this include cumulative figure of pre-Board and post Board
collections.

» Recovery transferred to Consolidated Fund {BOT]; this constitutes the amount cumulatively
collected by HESLE and then transferred back to the Government through Consolidated
accaunt,

» Staff Loans Revolving Fund that constitutes Housing and Motor vehicle loans extended to
employees on a revolving basis te mothvate HESLB employees with a view of increasing
efficiency and productivity. It is also meant to encourage S5taff to remain inta the
organization and perform their tasks for which they were hired for, hence assurance of
institutional memory and sustainability of the organization

» Accumulated Surplus/Deficit represents amounts that reflect surplus or Deficit realized on a
cumulative basis.

3.15 Budget Information

A major part of the budget to finance HESLB is through Parliamentary allocation through the
Ministry of Higher Education, Science and Technology. The allocation covers the operations of
HESLB as a single entity. The budget is prepared on cash basis based on types of expenditure.

Cantroiler and Auditor General B
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HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD (HESLE)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Financial statements are prepared on accrual basis therefore for comparative purpeses, financial
statements are adjusted to cash basis.

The budget covers a pericd of twelve menths from 1% July to 30" June every year. The budget
reallocation within a scope of 7% is approved by the Board of Directors whereas if the reallocation
exceeds 7% it will require the approval of the Treasury Registrar.

3.16 Events after reporting period.

Events after the reporting period are those events, favorable and unfavorable, that occur between
the end of the

reporting period and the date when the financial statements are authorized for issue, Twa types of
events can be fdentified:

= Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period
{adjusting events after the reporting period); and

« Thote are indicative of conditions that arose after the reperting period (nom-adjusting
events after the reparting period).

3.17 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of finarcial statements in confoermity with IPSAS requires the use of estimates and
judgment that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and lizbilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the directors’ best
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results uitimately may differ from those estimates,
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basls, Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the pericd of the revision and future perlods if the rovition affects
both current and future periods,

The mast significant use of judgement and estimates are as follows:
I. Going concem

The HESLE Board has made an assessment of HESLB's ability to continue as a going concern. The
Board Is satisfied that HESLB will continue to be supported by the Government by providing
resources for the provision of loans to students for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the Board
is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon HESLE's ability to
continue ac a going concern. Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on a
going concern basis.

| controller and Auditor General
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HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS® LOANS BOARD (HESLE)
NOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)  *
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

. Impairment of other financial assets

HESLE has adopted an incurred loss approach to impairment. Impairment losses are tneurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of occurrence of one or more past events
since initial recognition. Impairment exists when the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount and the asset 15 written down Lo the recoverable amount. The Board makes an assessment
of impaired losses on leans extended to beneficiaries based on relative diverse information basis
some judgement has to made on validity of those spurces.

i, Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Statement of
Financial Position cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of
valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical models, The input to these models is
taken from ohservable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgement is required in establishing fair values.

V.  Useful lives of property and equipment

Pursuant to the requirements of IPSAS 17 (Property, Flant and Equipment} and IP5A5 3 (Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors) Board makes accounting estimation of the
useful lives of assets based on the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic
benefits and reviews its depreciation rates at each reporting date.

3.18 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY (FIMAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS)

The introduction of IPSAS 41 substantially modifies IPSAS 29 by switching from a backward-locking
incurred-loss model to a forward-looking expected-credit-loss model.

3.18.1 THE IMPACT OF CHAMGE IN ACCOUNTING FOLICY

The tmpact of introducing IPSAS 41 is the emergence of expected credit loss in the financial
statements by having different cash and cash Equivalent figures reported in the statement of
financial position for prior financial year.

The standard also results in emergence of expected credit loss in the financial statements by
having different receivable figures reported in the statement of the financial position for prior
financial year.

[Mo [  Hame of the Bank Rating Agencies | Score Probability of Default (PD)
1 Bank of Tanzania (BOT) Monchy's B2 1.55%
¥ CRDE : Moody's | B ze%
E NMB Moody's 1 m EX
4 NBC Moody's B 0.61% al
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HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD (HESLE)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

The effect of expected credit loss on bank balance, receivable balance and accumulated

surplus/deficit is explained in table below.

Description Cash and bank | Student Loans | Staff Loans | Accumulated
balance Recefvable Receivable surplus Reasan
Balance Balamce
S i - e P B e S
accumulated
surplus * of  TIS
Financial year 122 481,438,260 | 4,835,514,918,164 | 2,080,002 250 218, 11E,934,030 | 223, 775,322,831
PP adjusted with
prior year
adjustment of TI>
4,543 611,200 for
PPE to get balance
of TZ5
228,318,934,030
Expected 2,040,250,130 | 659.761,313,026 | 916,074 | 661,B02,479,250 | Change  in
credit loss . aceounting policy
Restated | 120,441,188,109 | 4,175,755,605,138 | 2,059,086,275 | (433,483,545,720) | Change in
balance | accounting podicy

4, NEW AMD AMMENDED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

Mew issued International Public Sector Accounting Standards not yet effective are tabled below;

Standard
IPEAS 43: Leases

Effective date and Impact

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation, and disclasure of leases, The objective is to ensure that lessees and
lessors provide relevant information fm a manner that faithfully represents those
tramsactions. Thits information gives a basis for wsers of financial statemenls Lo
assess the effect that leases have on the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of an Entity,

The new standard requires entities to recognize, measure and present information
on right of use assets and loase llabilities.

For lessees, IPSAS 43 introduces a right-of-use model that replaces the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership model In [PSAS 13, Leases. For lessors, IPSAS 43
substantiatly carries forward the risks and rewards incidental to ownership modet in
IPSAS 13,
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HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD [HESLE)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) '

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024
Standard Effective date and Impacl
| IPSAS 44: Mon- Applicable 1 January 2025 —id = B
Current Assets Held | The Standard requires,
for Sale and Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be measured at the
Discontinued lower of carmying amount and fair value less costs to sell and the depreciation of
Operations such assets to coase and:

Assets that meet the critéria to be classified as held for sale to be presented
separately in the statement of financlal position and the results of discontinued
operations to be presented separately in the statement of financial performance.
The entity will improve the disclosure in the face of financial statements as the
non-current agsets held for sale and discontinued operations will be separately
reported and disclosed.

| IPSAS 45: Property,
Plant, and Equipment

Appiicable 1" Janvary 2025
International Public Sector Accounting Standard (IP5A5) 45 replaces IFSAS 17,
Property, FPlant, and Equipment by adding current pperational valve as a
measurement basis in the updated current value moded for assets within its scope,
sdentifying the characteristics of hevitage and infrastructure assets, and adding new
guidance on how Lhese important types of public sector assecs shouid be recognized
and measured.

(TPSAS 46:
Meaturement

Applicoble 1% January 2025
International Public Secter Accounting Standard (IPSAS) 46 provides new guidance in
a single standard addressing how commonly used measurement bases should be
applied in practice, It brings in generic guidance on falr value for the first Lime, and
introduces current operational value, & public sector specific current value
measrement basis addressing constituents' views that an alternative current value
measurement basis ko fair value & nesded for certain public sector assefs,

IPEAS 47: Revenue

Applicable 1% January 2026
International Public Sectar Aceounting Standard (IPSAS) 47 is a single source for
revenue accounting guidance in the public sector, which presents two accounting
models based on the existence of a binding arrangement. This new Standard
provides focused guidance to help antities apply the principles to account far public
seciof revienue transactions,

IP545 47 replaces the existing three revenue standards(IP5AS 9: Revenue from
Exchange Transactions, IPSAS 11: Construction Contracts and IPSAS 73: Revenue
frorm Non-Exchange Transactions), and presents accounting models which wrill
improve financial reporting and support effective public sector financial

management,
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) *
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Standard | Effective date and Impact
|PSAS 48: Transfer | Applicable 1% January 2026 R S
Expenses The International Public Sector Accounting Standards Board [IP5AS8) has fssued

Intermational Public Sector Accounting Standard [(IPSAS) 48 Transfer Expenses.
IPSAS 48 provides accounting guidance for transfer expenses, which account for a
significant portion of expenditures for many public sector entities. This new
Standard fills a significant gap in the IPSASE's literature and provides guidanice to
| help entities account for public sector transfer expense framsactions,

PSAS 49: Retirement | Applicable 1st January 2026 = —
Benefit Plans International Public Sector Accounting Standard (IPSAS) IPSAS 49 prescribe the
accounting and reparting requirements for public sector retirement benefit plans

{pension schemes). These are the schemes which provide retirement benefits to
public sector employees and other eligible participants,

Covers aceounting and reporting requirement for the plan for all participants &s a
group and not individual participants. It deals with retirement benefits for public
sector employees and other participants qualifying to join the plan, 1t does not
cover other forme of employment benefits including termination benefits, deferred
compensation arrangemnents, long service leave benefits, redundancy plans, bonus
plans ete.

e

5, FIMAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

HESLE operations are exposed te certain financizl risks. Financial risk management focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on HESLE's
financial performance. The main risks arising from the HESLE's operations are currency risk, credit
risk, liguidity risk and interest rate risk. HESLB reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks which are summarized below:

5.1 Interest Rate Risk

The HESLE's operating cash flows are affected by PSSSF loan which is being charged between 13.5%
and 15%. The risk on the loan has been mitigated by Government guarantee. The Government will
assume payment of loan on behalf of the HESLB.

5.7 Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates, HESLE's operations mestly utilize local currencies and therefore not
materially exposed to exchange rate fluctuations that have an impact on cash flows and financing
activities. Howewver, HESLB is exposed to foreign exchange risk in respect to loans issued to
averseas students, Therefore, HESLE mitigates this risk through issuing loans in Tanzanian shillings,

" Controller and Auditor General
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuad)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

5.3  Credit Risk

L

Credit risk 15 the risk that one party to a financial tnstrument will fail to discharge an obligation and
cause the other party to fncur a financial loss. HESLE is exposed to credit-related losses in the
event of non-performance by counterparties to financial instruments specifically the loan
heneficiaries who are currently working in Informal sector. However, efforts and legal
actions/strategies are currently in formulation for enforcement against the loan defaulters. This
includes banning them from acquiring cooperation/services from all the government related service
providers like Tax Revenue Authorities, the Home Affairs ministry specifically the passport control
section to mention the few, There has been strict fellow-up with the employers both in private and
public sector to ensure necessary deductions are made in their payroll for all their employees who
were previausly loan beneficiaries from the HESLE.

4 Receivables and pavables aging analysis
: 1te 2 - '
- | within 1 Year Sinke 3 -5 Years Beyond 5 Years ! TOTAL

SRS, TS Tis 7 - Y| I (N —
Cath and Cash
Ectvales - 42,193,460,078 | .4 A7,1%3,460,078
Students” Laan
Receivable {Current) R FEA A - . il
';:“r:'n}w" (Larg 4,503,733,374,867 | 4,50%,133,274 547
Total | 244,112,296,092 1B7,767,046,750 |  215,514,547,911
Met Position A58, 124,502 1684 = 4 690,900,421,317 | 4,962,760, 118,570
5.4  Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that ane part to the financial instrument will fail to honar its immediately
falling due liabilities. It is measured by comparing current assets excluding inventories with current
liahitities. HESLE manages the risk by maintaining a balance the items and regular review the
companents as shown in the table below:

5 Liguidity Timing
' TTEM [ 0-30DA¥S | 31-60DAVE | £1-90 DAYS 91-120 DAYS | OVER 120 DAYS
Cash and Cash
| Euivalent RN . - | 42,153,460,078
E;-;:Tiﬁle 31,134 015,911 143, 585,451 445 168 050,535,600 252,720, 335, 630 3 708 547,478,383
(Total __ 37,067,356,930 | 144,101,185,124 | 194,983,195,895 | 154,178,302,104 | 3,732,610,758,555
| Payablo 20,043,316 : 26,015,007,842 | 1,694,169,426 | 18,060,576
Cumrent portion of
PESEF Loan . 187, &7 Du6, 750
 Total 24306 [ = | 26,015,027.842 1,694,165, 426 187,785,107, 326
Mt Fasithon 3,'.!&#-:?,113,-514 44 101,185,124 168 968, 168,053 | 252,584 132,678 A, 54 E25 R51,233

| Controller and Auditer General
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HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD (HESLB)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particielars

BOT Cvam soasrce Cotlectbon Account
Deposit General Cash Account
Develapment Expenditure Cash Account
Loan Cash Account

O source Collection Account - CRDE
e source Collection Account - NBC
Owen source Collection Account - HME
O source Development Expenditise
Crwen source Reccurent Expenditure GF
Racurrent Expenditure Cash Account
Unapplied Cash Account

A0 BOT Collection Account
Development Expenditure Cash Account
Unapplied Cash Account

Praviskon for ECL {Cash)

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

7. Students’ Loans Receivable

Particulars

Crudents Recaivables- L&F

Studants Recoreables- VRF

Students Receivables: PEMALTY

tyeals ared Accammodalion = undaergraduate
#¥aals and Accommodation - pasigradiate
Research « Undergraduate

Rasearch - Postgraduate

Tuition Foes « Hndergraduste

Tuition Fees - Postgraduate
Field/Practical Training

Specia Faculty Reguiremsant

Books B Stationery

LStipend Owarseaz

Travelling Costs Cverseas

Disbursement Suspense Account

Meals and Accommodation AddStian
Books and Srationary Addition

Tuition Fees Addition

Total Receivables

Total Students” Loan Recovery

Recetvables net off Students’ Loan Recovery

Lass:
Expected Credil Losses - Long Term

Pricr year Adjustment for Expected Credit Loss -

Larg Term

Controller and Auditor Genaeral

L1

2024 2023
TIS TS
i0,253,504,629 97,461,904,512
94,175,547 1,590, 212,049
7,738,511,614 16,820 842 559
249,127,552 86,724, 365
g 862,678,697
- 720,000
1,227,500 2,422,750
93,562,475 1,751,443 642
2,589,168,875 1,006,205,391
1,674,822 9,380,654
59,953 811 639,311,181
1,760,936,054 1,773,791,218
B2,849 571 474,449 247
- 1,350,000
{731,896 B14) (2,040,250, 150)
 42,193,460,078 120,441,128,109
2024 2013
TS TIS
B, 08, 784,593 59,032,582, 737
1,311, 360,575,291 1,311,348,575,291
156,383,401.518 156, 133 404 18
3,836,009, 763,573 3,302,681 820,547
12,5665, 132,034 12,333,032,034
29, 266, 440,631 29,111,317 156
B, 179,598,010 T.E48,008,010
1,563, 148, 956 08 1,685.437,197 &73
12,789 100,900 12,567, 408, 400
380,002, 320,813 3B, 124,166,119
&0,500,710,564 89,261,429, 718
294,997 150,213 187,511,873, TR0

81,740,545,057
&, 420,495,730
76,04, 541
1,456,611 875

453, 600,000

1,668, 068,500

8,230, 447 334 441

_ (1,427,983,347,628)

6,802, 463,986 816

B1,540, 249,057
6,.359,575;002
100,882 473

7,495 575,785,017
(1,251,376,089,91%)

6,244, 199,695,098

Fry el

696, 809,850, 166

= = =T

B, 080, 860,865
65% T61,313 024

29

AR/PAMHESLBAZOZIVEA



HIGHER FDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD (HESLE)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)  °
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Provision Tor smpairment of Students’ Loand -
Yalue Retention Fes (VRF} Opening
Provisicen Ffor Impairment of Stisdents’ Loans -

1,208, 310,544,404 1,208 310,544,404

AR/PAMHESLB 2023724

a7 E4E 192,290,571, 665
PEMALTY Dpening 192,290,971,66 i
:::I' Frﬂﬂi‘lﬂﬁ for ll'l1|:|ﬂ|l.'E|'|'ﬂ|'. of Students’ LM?.I‘HJH,H! I,DEE.H..DIE.HED
ns N  — —p i L E R R o n o
Hebl/Restated Receivables from Students 4,705,052, 210,580 4,175, 755,605,138
Short Term 204,618, B16 014 171,014, 614,312
Long Term 4, 503,133,374, 547 4 0, 740,990, 826
8. Prepayment
Habe 2033124 T0Z2M23
Particulars 7% 175
Prepayment - Experses (Main) 49,008,176 17,540,055
Prepayment - Expenses (HEET] . 1,255,413
Prepayments Assets - Monetary 202,338,534 21
Total Prepayment 251,546,710 19,795, 468
9 Other Recaivables
024 2023
Particulars 75 118
Provisions For Students Loans 13,340,698, 465 22,312, 763,535
Frprest Recetvable - Main 97,898,550 55 038, TRE
imprest Recejvable - HEET . 282,100,812
Staff advances and imprest g 341,107 9,341,107
Shaff Loans Addition 2,960,791 459 2,050,661,192
Receivable (Staff benefit) ECL (776, 0% {216,074)
Other receivables - (Opening) - 21,144,559 | 21,144,599
Total ther Recelvables 16,424,097 ,500 34, 730,133,957
10, Inwentoriss
Mate 2023524 FO2RI2Z
Particulars TS TIS
Consumables 147,210,352 132,948 979
IT and Computer ACCessories - 30,803 466
Fuel BA, 320,000 1,000,000
Uniforms 4 170,530 5. 182,248
Spare parts and tyres _ 631814 =as -
Tatal Inventories 244,019,096 169,931,645
| Controller and Auditer General



HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD I:H!ES-LB]
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

11,  Assets Held for Sale

HokN Particulars

plon-Current assets held for sale
Total Inventories

2023724 02113
TS Tis
13,B98.667
13,898,667 g

Contraller and Auditor General

AR/PASHESLBS/ 2023724
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HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD [HESLE)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)  °
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE

i. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSMENT OF TZ5 4,543,611,200

Included in prior year adjustment for WIP classification of the Property Plant and Equipment is
addition of TIS 4,543,611,200 relating to recognition of the amount paid for construction of
HESLE office building in Dodoma wrongly charged as Consultancy Expense in the Financial Year
2022723 instead of being capitalization in WIP.

The effect of charging this expense as Consultancy Expenses is understatement of both WIP and
Accumulated Surplus/Deficit in Financlal Year 2032723,

iif. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMEMT OF TZS 460,037,152 AND TZS 446,138,485

Excluded in prior year adjustment for Office Furniture and Fixtures classification of the Property
Plant and Equipment are reduction of historical cost and accumulated depreciation of T/
460,037,152 and of TI5 446,133,485 respectively relating to de-recognition of assets approved for
sale/ disposal by the Mintstry of Finance prior the current financial year.

The effect of non-de-recognition of assets approved far sale/disposal in the financial year 202223
is overstatement of the Property plant & Equipment and non-disclosure of Assets Held for 5ale as
required by IPSAS 44,

13, INTANGIBLE ASSETS

PARTICULARS 2024 2023

TZE Tis
Cost
As at 01 July 1,512,647 6581 1,433,975,946
Additions S L I .. i L ]
As at 3 June 1, 748,180,695 1,512,647 661

Accumulated Amortization

Az at 01 July
Charge for the year
As at 30 June

Met Carrying Amownt
As at 30 June

| Coantraller ard Auditor General

1,159, 168,062
b 633,553

=

1,128,820,519
30,347 543

1,213,801,615

1,159,168,062

334,379,080

153,479,600

AR/PA/HESLBSZ023/24



HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD [HESLE)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

14, Payables and Accruals
Particulars

Aocruals

Miscellaneous deposits - (Staffl Loan
fnsurance)

Deposit Genarsl

Unapplied Deposit Account Addition
Unapplied Deposit Account - HEET

Provision for Dishursement of Students Loan
Opening

Supplies of goods and services Addition
Retention Payable Addition

Locial security contributions and HHIF
cantrisutions Addition

Total Payables and Accruals

15 Defarred Income Pavable

Deferred Subvention Current
Deferrad Subvention Capital - HEET
Tokal Payables and Accruals

16. Borrowing

e Particulars

FA55F Payable Opening
Interest paveble on PASSF
Penalty Payable on PSS5F Loan
Tatal Borrowing

Additional Disclosure

i

1024 2023
Ti5 TIS
1,714,133,319 7,725, 22T 868
18,060,576 18,060,576
94,175,547 1.5%90,212,04%9
59,953,811 639 311,181
- 1,350, 000
13,340,698, 465 22,312,763,535
476,030, 884
371,927,926 -
30,341,560
~ 18,105,324,120 32,286,927,231
T4 2023
TS TZS
. G, 380, 654
1,843, B46, 066 2,748,240, 440
1,843, 846,066 2,057 ,621,094
2023524 202223
TZ5 TZ5
B4 f44 657,534 Sk, bl 657534
£, 145, 344 131 54, 145,144 131
68,977,045,086 68,977,045,084
187,767,046,751 187,767,046,751

The above PSSSF Loan was used to finance higher education students since 2006707 under the
Government guarantes, However, HESLE paid to PS55F TZ5 21.0 billion between 20038-2010 and the
interest and penalty has accrued waiting for the Government to repay. The three loans were issued
at interest rate of 13.5% and other two at 15%, the Government will assume servicing of the loan.

Controller and Auditor General

AR/PA/MESLB/2023/24



HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD (HESLE)
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Hote

Hote

Hote

0,

Penalties and

17. Fees, Fines,

Forfeits
Particulars

Sale of Gevernmenkt Assats
Employers Panalties
Total Fees, Fines, Penalties and Forfeits

18. Government Subvention

Particulars

Govermmienk Grant Development Local
[Samia Scholarship)

Subvention Other Charges

Subvention Capital

Government Grant Personal Emolument
Taotal Government Subvention Revenus

Meovement in Deferred Income
peferred Subvention Current
Deferrad Subvention Capital - HEET
Tokal Movemeant

Total Government Subvention Received

19, Subvention from

Government entities

other

Particulars

Government Grant Development Forelgn

Total Subvention from ather Government
entitias

Loan Administration Fee

Monetary - LAF
Kon-Monetary - LAF
Tatal Students’ Loan Administration Fee

! Contraller and Auditor General

2023/24 2022723
5 TZ5
: 10,850,100
130,379,247 23,545,469
130,379,247 34,405,569
2023/24 2022/23
TS TZ5
5,844,067,172 1,377 845,575
19,855, 390,000 12,120,000,000
5,000,000, 000 5,000, 000,000
&, 484,664,100 4,427,995,096

39,184,121,272

25,925,841,071

{9,380,654) 9,380,554
{404,394,374) b, 032,054
{413,775,028) 75,413,708

38,770,346, 144 ~ 26.001,254,779
2023/24 2022423
TZ5 TIS
4,145,950,648 3,714,328,735
4,165,950,668 3,714,326,735
2024 2023
TZS TS
2,884,519, 846 2,374,397.699
4,391,682,310 3,966,141,249
T,A76,202,156 6,340, 538,948

ARPATHESLE /2023724

95



HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS’ LOANS BOARD [HESLB)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Hote

21, Other Income
Particulars

Laan Application Fee

Gaim from Moverment of ECL for Bank Balances
Gain from Movement of ECL for 5tafl Loans
Total Other Income

22, Salaries, Wages and
Employment Benefits

Particulars
sctirg Allpwance

- Cameal Labourears

Ciwil Servants

Civil farvants Contracts
Court Attire Allowanoe
Electricity

Electricity Allowance
Extra-Duty

Foud and Refreshment
Furniture Experscs
Honoraria

Houschold Appliances
Hatising allowance Experses
Heaiisirg Alewance discretionary Ecpansas
Loave Travel

Intermship Allawanoe
Medical and Dental Refunds
técving Expenses

matlonal Health insurance Schemes(HHIF)
Employee Expenses

Qutfit Allovweance

Sitting Allowance

Special Mlowance
Subsistence Allowance
Talephons

Transport Mlowance

Water and Waste Disposal
Telephone allowance
Grotuities

Total Salaries, Wages and Employment Benefits

| Contraller and Auditar Genearal

i

2024 023
TI5 TS
4,569,952, 651 3.02%9.271,700
1,308,353, 336 -
1 39| 3‘&4 =
5,878, 445,351 3,029,271,700
202324 2022523
TLs TS
16,321,000 54,008,000
13,940,000 5, 377,000
B, 4%, 185,400 b, 427,955,056
184,233,550 14,932,070
3000, 00 2,000,000
1135, GRS, 000 B2, 350,049
- 18,815,000
A3 3,430,000 A3E 410,000
78,117,813 1,054,012
24, 000,000 77, TR2, 640
754,500,000 523 600,000
12,493 000 175,200
874,775,000 a4, 799,000
262 385,696 155, TO0, D00
145,023 980 120,549 870
118,970,000 174, 740,000
1,125,000 ERLLL Bkl
74,994 580 6, 218 150
i, 475, 000 110,500,000
16,000,000 73,500,000
83,500,000 106, 144,000
1,429, 670,000 1, 158,049,000
317, 562,961 95,429,600
163,285,711 116, 735,933
1,161, 737,500 918,323,000
100,000 BT0,008
J39, 273,356 20,400,000
R, 000, G0N0 :
15, 104, 330,047 11,203, 688,057

AR/PASHESLB/Z023/24



HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD (HESLE)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuad)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

23. Goods and Service

Mote 2023/24 2022123
Particulars 175 T7%

Advertising and Publication - Communication £9,288,000 66,432,560
& Information
Afr Trave! Tickets 1,223, 829,240 79, 0B6,530
Catering Services 1¥7, B, 000 166,197,888
Cleaning Supplies p 458,500
Camputer Supplies and Accessories 118,639,611 145,153, 084
Conferanc Facilities 151,204,439 71,057,600
Courier Services 54,415,000 30,141,300
Diesel 251,560,380 352,154,911
Drugs and Medicines . 100,000
Educational Radio and TV broadcasting 29,983,000 17, B88, BOD
programmeng
Electricity - Utilities Supplies and Services 125,066,415 92,235,560
F_nr.-elrr.amrnem - Hogpitality Supplies and 106,000,000 82,500,000
Services
Exhibition, Festivals and Celebrations 10,961,745 1% 481, 760
Food and Refreshments 231,331,584 160,773,182
Gifts and Prizes 7,300,000 25,500,000
Ground Transport (Bus, Train, Water) 14,700,000 29,075,000
Ground travel (bus, railway taxi, etc) 11,865,000 1,451, 640,44
Intermat and Email connectlons 256,235,774 257,584 540
Mobile Charges 45,210,000 237,342,001
Court attire Allowance = 2,000,000
Hewspapers arnd Magazines 1,000, 000 .
Office Consumahles (papers, pencils, pens
and stationaries) 55,502,030 95,414,556
Qutsowrcing Costs (Includes cleaning and
i seﬂw.mr . 220,039,334 288,647,347
Per Diem - Domestic 8,300, 164, 289 3,74% 1835, 000
Per Diem - Farslgh 200,980,521 150,170,670
Pasts and Telegraphs 7,354,500 3,857,750
Printing and Photocopying Costs 300,000 20,114,786
Production and Printing of Training Materials - F. 392,130
Publicity 28,103, 800 24, 300,000
Remumeration of Instructors 10, 800,000 23,800,000
Fent - Housing 23,400,000 a0, 883,491
Fent - Office Accommodation 597,225,558 344,214,959
Coart Attire Allowance . 2,000,000
Eent of Vehicles and Crafs - .
sofbwars Licenss Fesg 18,195,069 198,639,497
Subscription Fops 35,759,280 74,435 B15

| cantraller and Auditor Ganaral

ARPAFHESLB/2023/24
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HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD [HESLB)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) !

AR/PA/HESLB/I0Z23/24

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024
Goods and Service (Continued)
Particulars 175 T15%

Training Allowances 180,709,196 170,451,000
Tuition feet 10,695,620 4, 000, 000
Uniforms - 6, BT 264
Water Transport 3,940,000 4,145 494
Uniforms and Ceremonial Dresses 31,341,200 14,334,000

Per Diem - Foreign - 35,409,300
Teehnical Service Fees 5,080,000
Fuemigation - 1,481,184
Tuition Fees Training « Domestic 270 B12.973 4593 418,500
Air Travel Tickets 301,416,646 351,358,770
Catering Services = 5,500,000
Computer Suppliss and Accessories - 75,440,000
Conference Facilities 2,255,413 731,315,000
Dhesal 1,000,000 441,000
Girownd travel (bus, rallway taxi, etc) 1,537, 304,000 AR, I6E, 600
Per Diem - Damestic /00,007, 500 1,597, 810,000
Per Diemn - Foreign 173,503,002 112,639,592
Pubdicity r 7,050,000
Remuneration of Instruchors 1,300,000
Software License Foes E 275.455,953
Training Materials 9,500,000 4,300,000
Tuition Feet Tralning - Domestic 171,116,860 169,910,217
Upkesp Alipwances 152,536, 327 166,141,379
Yiza Application Fees - TR0 000
Upkeep of Grounds and Amenities . R1Z,000.00
Computer Software - Use of goods and Services 21 B3R 589
éﬁf:,cwm - Ltilithes Supplies and 1,411,307
Rent of Private vehicles 1,300,000
Training Allowances 57 131,694

Production and Printing of Trairing Materials 19,773, 445
Sporting Supplies 9,935,104

Visa Application Fees 1,656,960

Fumigation Expenies 1,438,800 4
Total Goods and Service 16,978,662,314 13,495,501,921
Prior year expenses (Retired Imprest)
Per Diem - Domestic . 47,100,000
Ground travel (bus, railway taxl, etc) - 13,549,000
Afr Travel Tickets el 7,846,600
Total Adjustment for Imprest Receivable . 78,495,600
Total Goods and Service (Restated) ~ 16,978,662,314 13,573,997,511
24. Depreciation and Amortization

| Controller and Auditor General



HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BQARD (HESLB)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)  °
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

2023724 2021723
Farticulars 7% TS
Depreciation - Computers and Related 453,763,132 116 567.051
Equizemient R
Depreciation - Furniture & Fitkings 71,484,109 230,515 764
Depraciation - Mator Vehlcles 134,983,B13 285,938,438
Depreciation - Plant, Machinery and Equipment 17,061,155 B, 356, 362
Computer Safbware Amortization 15,35E,042 z
Amortization - Integrated Loan Managament
System (ILMS] 19,275,511 1ﬂ.34?i.543
Total Depreciation and Amartization 735,926,062 951,725,156
15.  Maintenance Expenses
Farteukas 2023724 Flirriys]
i TIS TZ5
Air conditioners 7,745,430 5,225,000
Electrical and Other Cabling Materials - 4,767,311
Fax machines and other small office 7,600,959 1,264,960
cguipment
Crutsourcs Malntenance Contract Senvices 247,356,927 277,515,854
Faint and Weather Protection Coatings : 1,620,000
Plumbing Supplies and Fixtures 5,240,000 5,766 B4
Tires and Batberies 17,120,520 358,131,781
Photocopiers . 14,000, 700
Fire Protection Equipment 354,00 1,238,280
Direct labour [contracted or casual hira) - "
Machinery, Equipment and Plant 1,233,000
Electrical and Other Cabling Materials - 7,200,000
Bufldings e
Total Maintenance Expenses 194,872,836 347,530,550
&, Other Expenses
2024 2023
Particulars 175 175
Comultancy foes - 317,851,106
Audit fees Expenses 292,703,750 276,761 366
Investigation expenses . 8,000,000
Bank Charges and Commissions 06,852,192 148,026 304
fHrecktor's Fee 31,812,500 51,000,000
Honorariums {expert opinion) §,000,000 7,100,000
Insurance Expenses 53,658,115 76,934 471
Burial Expenses 10,395,000 1%, 500, 000
Bad and Doubiful expenses - 1.830,418.014
comsultancy fees 415,190,207 -
Bank Charges and Commissions 65,612 -

Total Other Expenses

27. Grants, 5ubsidies and other
Transfer Payments

| Controller and Auditor General

915,687,376

2,745,591,213

AR/PASHESLB/2023/24



HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD (HESLE)
MWOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Hote

Mote

9.

an,

Haote

Particulars

Contribution to CF (15%)
Total Grants, Subsidias and other Transfer
Fayments

28.  Students’ Grant Payments
Particulars

meals and Accommaodation

Books and Stationery

Tuition Fases

Research

Fiald Practical Trafning

Special Faculty Requirement

Medizal Insurance

special Meads Facilitation (Disabled Students)
Employes

Total Student’s Grant payments

Expected Credit Loss (ECL}

Particulars

Bank Balances
Staff Loans
Studerts’ Loan Recebable

Total Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

Accrued Expenses for Z022/23 paid in
202324

Particulars

Electricity
Telephone allowance
Diesel

Directors’ Fee

Pests and Telegraphs
Sewage Charges

Adecrued Expenses for 2022023 pald in
2023724

31. Deposits
Particulars

; Cantraller and Auditor Genaral

2023514 2022123
Ti% TIS
230,000,000 .
230,000,000 .
2023714 2022723 -
TZ5 TIS
2,977,601,575 1,407,563,875
242,150,000 121,800,000
7.767,353,599 774,378,000
T00, 000 00,000
174,660,000 4,200,000
122,985,498 36,460,900
632,043,400 30,643,200
1,574, 100

5,844,067,172

_1,377,845,975

AR/PAIHESLB/ID23/24

2024 2023
TS TLS

2,040,250, 150

- 914,074

26,967 686,275 65%,761,313,026

28,967 686,275 661,802,479,250
2024 2023
T5 TZS5

4, BOT, 394

3,450,000

2,013,958

11,687,500

2,752, 300

1. = ) 10,078

- 24,721,235
2074 1023



HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS” LOANS BOARD (HESLE)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

TIS TIS
Unapplied Deposit Accourt (57%,357,371) 639,311,181
Deposit General (1,496, 036,5302) 1,590,212, ,04%
Unapplied Deposit Account - HEET (1,350,000) 1,350,000
Total Increase /7 (Decrease) in Deposits {2,076,743,873) 2,230,873,230
31. Other Income
Hate 2024 2023
Peviicubaes TZ5 TZ5
Application fae 4 589 952 451 3,079,271, 700
Loan Administration Fees 2,884,519 846 2,374, 397,650
Total QOther Income T,454 472 497 5,403 669,399
33, Actual Salaries, Wages and Employment Benefits
MHote 2024 2023
Farticulars 7% 115
Total Salaries, Wages and 1
Employrent Benefits Ex 15,106,520,047 1,203, 6BE,052
Tatal Actual Salaries, Wages
and Evel wt Berafits 15,106, 520,047 11.203,588,052
24, Actual Goods and Service
024 1023
PRIt TS TZ5
Goods and Servics 16,978 £43,214 13,495,501, %21
Sundiny Creditors - 14,949 865
Accruals &,011,094,53% 1,999,571, 450
Withhalding tax £ = 5,595,451
Institutiznal HE Students Loan recoveny - (200, 141 8005
Comumables 14, 263 461 181,387,214
IT and Computer Acoeisories (30,802, 464) (30, 3BT, 254)
Fual A5, 320,000 1,000,000
Unifarms {101,783 5,187,748
Spare parts and fyres G HEATS -
Students Loan Adminstration Fae (6, 340, 530 940}
Drisbursement SUspense ACoount (24,868, 334] i4,135,735,403)
Prowisions For Stsdents Loans - 12,312, 763,535
Trade Recoivables : [F14, 511 484
Brepayments - Expenses 3,751,242 (39,251,415)
Imprest - Main 37, B59 Thd ['-"!E.‘!EEI-."?I?F
Imprest - HEET (332,100,812 182,100,812
Stall Advances and Imprest - {6, 530, 467)
Staff Lears Lddition 910,120, 197 (152 45T 851)
supplies of goods and services Addifion (478,030, BE4) -
Retention Payable Addition (33,927 Sia) 2
Social security contributions and MHIF {30,341, 560 .

contributions additson
Total Actual Goods and Service

[ Contraller and Auditor General

23,088,316,092

ARPASHESLB 023/ 24

17,189,616,637
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HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD (HESLE)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Mote

Note

Mote

35. Other Cash Expensas
Particulars

Total ather Expensas

Bad and Doubtful expenses
Prior vear Directars” Fee
Total Other Cash Expenses

36. Loan issued during the period
Parkiculars

Closing Receivables

Opening Receivables

Students Receivalbles- LAF
Dishursement Suipense Account
Total Loan ssued during the period

37. Funds Received for Issuing Loans

Particulars

Closing Funds Received for Issuingg Loans
Qpening Funds Received for Issuing Loans
Prior Year Adjustment

Provision far impairment of $tudents’ Loans -
Valie Retention Fee (WVRF) Opening
Provision for shursement of Stedents Loan
Opening

Total Funds Received for Fssuing Loans

38. Students Loans Recovery during
the period
Particulars

Closing Students Loans Recovery

Cpeming Students Loans Rocovery

Loan Administration Fees

Accrued refund for overpaid Students’ Laans
Total Students Loans Recovery during the
period

39,  5taff Loans Revolving Funds
Farticulars

Closing Fund

Contraller and Auditor General

(7,276,202, 156}

2024 2023
TIS Tis
919,687,376 2,745,591,213
- (1,830,218 014}
o 11,687,500 e e
931,374,876 915,173,199
2024 2023
TS TIS
B,230, 447,334, 441 7,495,575 785,017
{7,495,575,785,017) {6,847,215,679, 776)

(6,340,538, 948)

24,868,334 4,135,735,403

727,620,215,602 646,145,301 696
2024 023
TIs Tis

6,413,899 647,815
(5,777,619,086,066)

5,777 619,086, D66
(4,698,848,527,931)
(410,695,118,172)

(450,967 ,649)

22,312,763,535

&46,280,561,749 689 897,135,849
2024 2023
TI4 TS

1,427,382, 347 626
(1,251, 376,089, 919)
12,884,519 ,846)

1,251,176,089,919
{1,084 235 422 608)
2,374,397 ,699)

1 665 165 708

173,722,737 ,B61

167,431,639,311
2024 2023
TS TIS
2.661,772,957 1,597,530, 146

ARPAMHESLE/2023/24



HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD {HESLB)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)  *
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Opening Fund (1,597,530, 146 (1,696 408,59%)
Total Staff Loans Revolving Funds 1.064,242,811 (98,878,453)
40, Transfer to Consolidated Fund
(BOT)
Mote Z024 2023
FAREReulars TIS TS
Closing Transfer Balance (1,456, 775, 009, 665) (1,288, 127,310,931)
Opening Transfer Balance 1,288,127,310,9M F20,002,637,39%
Prior Year Adjustment 216,596,945, 712

Total Transfer ta Consolidated Fund (BOT) (16,647,698 AT4)

(151,827,727.870)

41.  CASH FLOW RECONCILIATION FOR THE YEAR EMDED 30 JUME 2024

DETAILS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIHNG ACTIVITIES
Farticulars

Surplus fDeficits) for the year

Hon-Cash tems:

Depreciation and Amortizsation chargs
Provision for bad debts | students’ loans)

Skudents Loan Adminictration Fee

Provisions For Shedents Loans

DMsbusrsemeant Suspense Account

Accrued refund for overpaid Students’ Loans

Reversal of provision for impairment of Receivables (ECL)
Expected Credit Loss

Receivable (Staff benefit) ECL

Government Subvention - PE non cash Revenue
Government Subvention - PE non cash expenses

Total Hon-Cash ltems

Changes in Working Capital:

(Increase |/ Decrease in Receivables

ilncrease |/ Decrease in Prepayments

(Increase) / Decrease in Inventary

Increase / (Decrease) in Payables

Het Change in Working Capital

Itemn of cash flows from Imvesting activities (Sale of PPE |}
Met cash flows from operating activities as per Cash flow
Statement (A)

Controllar and Auditor General

2024 2023

TIS TS
{12,442,323,379) (653,983,194,929)
951,725,154

738,924,062

4,391,682,310}

1,830,418,014
{3,964 141,247)

(22,312,763,535)

24 868 314 4, 135,735,401

2 {2,665 369,709}
[1,“."?1,?{“’ T
28,967 686,375 BH1,B0Z, 479,250
139,364 {916,074)

(B, 484,664, 100) (6,417,995, 004)
8,484 4484 100 6,427,995, 026
11,586,121,646  (14,208,027,673)
8, 306,036,457 5,240,558 611
(231,751,243) 39,751,415
(74,087,451 (57,187,108
_{16,595,376,140) _ 4,276,000,154
{8,595,180,377) 9,458,692, 972
: (10,860, 100}

2,990,941, 269 {4,760,194,800)
103
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HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD (HESLE|
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) '
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

431, LIST OF TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES WITH OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES

& | Goods/serviess received | Mame of entity provided goods’services E %ﬂlﬂ th@:ﬂ;'“'
1| ELECTRICITY | TAMESCO p— | 84,820,112
MAINTEMANCE AND
SERVICE HEHED - ki
| INTERMET AND VOUCHER | TTCL - B =1 100,871,937
4 | RENTOFRCE | PssEF E = 518,707,673
§ | REMT OFFICE HESF = L Y
4 | LOAN - PESSF i : 187,767,046, 750
WATER AND WASTE
7 DISPOSAL DAMASA, i N o
FUEL AND MOTOR
' lvemce | P e et
| § | AUDITFEEANDRENT [ CAG | weoeiSse]
] E.CI{*:IEEREHE_E_F_J_;E!.IT‘I' MLAg B 5 _%I#E:IE-.UN'
11| COURER ) TPC 57,659,300 =
13 | SECURITY SUMAJKT 115,075,923
13 | THAINING | UGNGOZIINSTITUTE et 21,075,000
14 | TRAIMING TPSC 76,197,625
| 15 | EXHIBITICH - | TANTRADE - . 2,511,765
16 | TRAINING INSTITUTE OF DIRECTORS 44,590,000 |
17 _| RENT NHC - 13,170,480
18| TRAIMING TRAMPA i 2, 700,000
19 | TRAINING TAPSEA 3,150,000
20 | ADVERTISING . - = 1,035,000
3 WFTW FEES AMD F"SEH-T 4,150,000
| 22 | IMSURANCE M. o i e 54,899,219
MIMISTRY OF EDUCATION SCIENCE AMD
23 EI':]-IH-'I'I:h_.'.IH . TECHNOLOGY P s 33,100,000 :
| 24| MEDICAL INSURANCE NHIE 111,250,000 ]
25 | SLIBSCRIPTICH TAWCA 150000 0 e
TOTAL | 2,401 623 983 187, F67 046,750

44, DISCLOSURE FOR PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT IN THE STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET
ASSET/EQUITY

The following table provide details of journal entries related to prior year adjustment for the
statement of change in net asset/equity: -

AMOUNT IN TZ
M DESCRIPTION
DR CR

1 | Prior year adjustment of TTS 659,761,313,026 being the 65%,761,313,026

differsnce  between impairment loss charged before

adoption of IPSAS 41 in FY wear 2023723 (TI5

8 080, 860,845) and impairment lots charged after adoption

of IPSAS 41 in current FY (66T 842 171)

Centroller and Auditor General 105
: AR/PA/HESLE/Z023/24



HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD (HESLE)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) "
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

2 | Prior year adjustment for 2022/23 bank balances ECL 2,040,250,150
resulting from adoption of IPSAS 41 in the current FY

3 | Prigr year adjuswn__tnt for 2022/23 Staff Loans balance ECL 916,074
resulting from adoption of IPSAS 41 in Lhe current FY

4 | Prior year adjustment for amount wrongly charged as 4,543 611,200
consultancy expense in FY Z0Z2/23 instead of capitalizing
to wark in progress for ongoing construction of HESLE office
building in Dedoma

& | Prior year adjustment for Imprest Receivable 78,495,600

& | Prior year ad]ﬁanm being am expense incurred in 24,721,235
7022113 but paid in 2023/24 as narrated in note 41.

MET ADJUSTMENT £57, 362,084 886

45. OPERATING LEASE

HESLE has Lease agreement with PSSSF for an office in Arusha, MAD Office in Dodoma, MAD Office
in Mbeya, PSSF Office in Mtwara, PS55F Office Mwanza and I5TC in Zanzibar. The terms of
agreement period are one-year rental payable for the office of Arusha, Dodoma, Mwanza, Mbeya,
Miwara and three years rental payable for Zanzibar Office. Lease agreements are remswal, All lease
agreements are operating leases.

46, EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Events after the reporting period are those events, favorable and unfavorable, that occur between
the end of the reporting period and the date when the financial statements are authorized for
issye. Twa types of events can be identified:

. Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period
{adjusting events after the reporting pericd); and

ll. Those are indicative of conditions that arcse after the reporting peried (non-adjusting
events after the reporting period).

HESLE has non-adjusting events after reporting period disclosed in contingent liabilities - Litlgations
disclosure note.

47. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES - LITIGATIONS

As at 30 June 2024, the Board had pending litigations in which it was a plaintiff and Defendant in
several lawsuits, The following are some lawsuits that have been concluded or are about to be
concluded, which may result in material cash flow from HESLE,

| Contraller and Auditor General
ARPASHESLEBS 2023724



HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD (HESLB)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)  *
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

a. CASES RELATING TO STAFF
i. EXECUTION NO. 393 OF 20212

This matter stems from labor dispute Mo, CMA/DSM/KIN/R. 587/ 16/717, which was concluded in the
defendant's favor, a former HESLE employee. Therefore, HESLB is to pay TZ3 550,000,000 as his
rerminal benefits. The matter is currently pending for ruling at the Court.

fi. TERMINATED SIX HESLE FORMER SENIOR STAFF

HESLE also monitars pending cases by six terminated senior staff, Out of the said individuals, five
preferred an appeal against the decision of the Public Service Compnission. HESLE is yet Lo obtain
final decision on the said appeals.

b. OTHER CASES
1. HESLB VS TANZANIA BUILDING WORKS (TBW)

The dispute stems from the refusal by the Contractor (TEW) to pay the Client (HESLB) TI5
1,585,10%,034.98, an amount established by the Consultant following the termination of the
contract for non-performance. In the same vein, the Contractor counterclaimed the payment of
TI5 4,624,063,127 for alleged breach of contract and other claims. The matter was referred to the
Mational Construction Council {MCC) for arbitration where parties appainted Mr. Evans 5. Wapalila a
sole arbitrator. The hearing was completed, and having paid for the service, on 12 July 2022, HESLE
collected the arbitral award.

The decision was to the effect that the Contractor TBW breached the contract and, therefore, was
to refund HESLE TZIS 1,082,077,789.51; equally, it was declared that the contractor was entitled to
TIS 685,688,732, 49, the value of materials ordered by the Respondent before the breach cccurred.
However, the TZ5 4,624,063,127 counterclaim was rejected. The matter is still pending in court for
execution,

f. MSOLOPA AUCTION MART VS HESLB

In this matter, the Claimant (MS0OLOPA) claims against HESLB for the payment of the sum of TIS5
1,532,319,360.82/~ for unpaid commission for work done before the contract was terminated.
HESLR has a counterclaim of TZ5 753,530,087, The matter has been pending for cross-examination
of the Respondent (HESLB) witness, Additionally, On 1% February 2021, the Arbitrator dismissed the
Claimant's claim against HESLB for the reason of non-payment of the arbitration fee. The matter is
pending an order of continuance of cross-examination of a Respondent witness in respect of a
counterclaim filed by HESLE,

| Contreller and Auditor General
AR/PA/HESLBS 2023524
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HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD (HESLE)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) ’
FOR THE YEAR EMNDED 30 JUNE 2024

Wi. HESLBVS. TRAVEL LINK LTD

This is an appeal by HESLE challenging the high court judgment and decree in civil case no, 101 of
2018 between Travel Link vs, HESLE, where the court decided that HESLE should pay USD 20,844 as
the cost of air tickets and T25 2, 272,000, Interest of rate of 15% of the decretal amount from the
date of cause of action to the date of judgment. Payment of interest on the decretal amount at the
court rate of 12% per annum from the judgment till full payment. General damages of TIS
7,000,000, The matter is yet to be admitted at the Court of Appeal,

iv. IM THE MATTER OF ARBITRATION ACT CAP 15 RENOVEX V5. HESLE CLAIMANT

Renovex, who was a debt collector, following the termination of the contract, filed a case against
HESLB before the Tanzanian fnstitute of Arbitrators, claiming his alleged unpaid commission for
work done before the contract was terminated. Renovex claims TZ5 454,920,048 as outstanding
invoices, interest on the principal amount of TZ5 752,118,272 compounded as per contract from
August 2016, and Special damages for breach of contract to the tune of TZ5 2,000,000,000. The
matter i pending a ruling on Preliminary Objection on a point of law raised by HESLB challenging
the Jurisdiction of the Arbitrater. The matter is pending payment of the arbitrator's fee by the
Claimant, after which each party will collect the ruling.

v. CIVIL APPEAL NO. 115 OF 2023: HESLB V5. HEMATEC INVESTMENT LTD

This is an appeal by HESLE against the decision in Civil Case No. 160 of 1018, where the court
dismissed HESLB's claim against Hematec (Respondent) for payment of arrears of HESLE statutory
deductions amounting to T25 64,254,792 and TZS 80,318,400, which is an cutstanding penalty for
the late remittance of the said deductions. The Appeal is still pending in Court.

48. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Previaus year figures have been re-grouped whenever considered necessary in order to make them
comparable with current year's figures.

Contraller and Auditor General
ARPAMHESLB/Z023/ 24
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HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD (HESLB|
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

AMNEXURE
23 List of Higher Learning institutions and strategic partners

S/N | Mame of Higher Learning Institution

AbdutRahman Al-Sumait t Memorial Hnwmﬂ'.y {summ

—m—

]
2 | Aga Khan University {A‘I{.d:j
3 | Archbishop Mihayo University College of Tabora (AMUCTA)

| Archbishop James University College I[A._I_UCO}

| Ardhi University (ARU]

— e ———— ——

Arusha Technical College (ATC)

Catholic University of Health and Allied Sciences 1EI.H-I.&S‘|

Center for Foreign Relatﬁnns Dar o5 Salaam (CFR)

College o of African Wildlife Management Mw Mureka (CAWM)

College o of Bustness Education Mwanza (CBE-MZ)

College of Business Education Dar es Salaam {EBE DSM)

Linfversity uf Dar &5 salaam (UDSM)

LRS- -Cul:legt nr'_gh'leermg and Technology {Eﬂl—.‘l’]

Dar es Salaam Institute of Technalogy (DIT)

Dar 5 Salaam Hurﬁrfme Institute {DMI}

ek

4
3
2]

| 7
B
9
10

[ 11

| 12 | College of E1.|51n:-5.s Education Dodoma (CBE - DOM)
13

> i
15
16
17
18
19

21 | Institute of Accountancy Arusha - Arusha {IAA - ﬁ.rusha}

21 | Institute of Adult Educaﬂun 1I.AEJ

26 | Institute of Rural Development Flanmng [IRDP-DOM)

23 | Institute of Finance Management (IFM)

27 In:I:lI;:LI[E' of Rural Development Planning- Lake Zane Centre (IRDP-MZA)

78 | Institute of Social Wark (ISW)

29 | Institute of Social Work- Mwanza Campus (ISW-MZA)

30 !nsl:itute of Tax Administration (ITA}

31 | Jordan University C_ME {JUCD)

31 | Kampala In:emahunal University in Tanzania (KIU}

PRy TR

34 | Kilimanjaro Christian Medical College {TIJI KCMC)

35 | Marian University College (MUCQ)

36 | Mbeya University of Science and Technalogy (MUST)

| 37 | Mkwawa University College of Education (MUCE)

38 | Moshi Cooperative University {MoCU

|42 | Mwenge Catholic University (MWECAU)

39 | MS Training Centre for Development Eungeratinn

40 | Mumimbili Llnwer::l'ty of Health and Allied Sciences (MUHAS)

41 | Muslim Un'rwzrsltruf Morogaro {MUM)

43 | Mzumbe University Main Campus (MU- “MORO)

Controller and Auditor General
AR/PAMMESLB/ 2023724




HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD (HESLE)
NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (Continuad) ;
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

5/N | Name of Higher Learning Institution
44 | Mzumbe University Mbeya College (MU- Mﬂﬂ,

45 | National Institute of Transport (NIT)

46 E!p-en University of Tanzania (OUT)

47 | Ruaha Catholic University (RUCU)
45 sebasuan Kolowa Memorial University 15E_|{ﬂ||'-"|Ufl

49 | Sokoine e University of -ﬁgrir:Lﬂ.tun'xt {5UAY

| 50 | 5t Augmtrne University in Tanzania Mbeya Center (SAUT - Hﬂ"l"}

52 St . Augustine Unnrers.lt].r of Tan:.mm (SAUT ARS)
53 | 5t, Francis University College of f Health Sciences (SFUCHAS)

54 | St, Johns University of Tanzania {SJUT)

55 St 1. Joseph University College of Health and Allied Allied Sciences nees (SJUCAS)

56 | LDSM School of Journalism and Mass Enmmmicatlun LH}SM SJMC)

57 | $t. Joseph University in Tanzania En_ghur ng and Tecrmﬂlgg‘y {3JUIT)

58 | State University of Ianzlhar _{SI_IIM

| 60 Stella Ji'Lang_F_nH.u_u'ara Ur'_l’!"'.feriil.‘f College {S‘Fﬂ-'l.l'l“.ll:ﬂ]-

61 | Tanzania Institute of Accountancy - (TIA MZA)

61 | Tanzania Institute of Accountancy -(TIA -5G0Y

63 | Tanzania Institute of Accountancy (TIA-DSM) i

64 | Tanzania Insti‘tul'.f of Accountancy (TIA-MBY) =t
5 ‘I'm:ama Public Service College Dar e Salaam Campus Q’FEC D5M)

-

66 | Tengeru Institute of Community Development (TCDTI)

67 | Teofilo Kisanji University (TEKU)

&8 | Teafilo Kisanji University (TEKL -DSM)

| 69 | The Mwalimu Nyerere Memorial Acadeny (MNMA-DSM)

70| The twalimu Nyerere Memarial Academy Zanzibar (MNAA-ZNZ]

71 | Tumaini University Makumira (TUMA)
| 72 | Tumaini Unfversity Dar es Sataam College :T'UDAHCG]
73 l.!rnqua Academy Dar es Salaam

74 | United African University of Tanzania {UALIT)

75 Unhwerﬂtg.r of Arusha {Una)

76 | Unfversity of Dar es Salaam (UDSM)

- fu::mmg; of Dodoma il._Jl‘.lﬂM}

78 | University of Iringa {Ual)

79 | Water Development Managzrment Institute ;wm.u;

B0 | Zanzibar University (ZU)

81 | Mount Meru University (MMU}
A1 | Mount Merl Uiniversity Mwanza (MMU-MZA]

83 | Law School of Tanzahla
B4 | Mwalimu Julius r'-l_yerer-& University of .ﬁgnl:u'lture and Technology (M NUAT)

85 | M5 Training Centre for Development cooperation (MSTCDC)

Institute of Accountancy Arusha - Dar es Salaam (1A - Dar es Salaam)

| Controfler and Auditor General
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HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS' LOANS BOARD (HESLE)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) '
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

E

‘Mame of Higher Learning Ir Institution o

‘Name of Stratgh: Partner

Tanzania Social Actéon Fund (TASAF)

Registration, Insolvency and Trusteeship -ﬂ.geny (RITA)

Association of Tanzania Employers (ATE)}
Ha.tmrtal Social Security Fund (NSSF)
Public Service Social S-EEu‘ity Fund {P555F)

S

Business Registration and Licensing Autharity (BRELA)

—

Cmmtt»ae of Vice Chancellors, Principals and Provosts of Tanzania :E‘r’CFT}

o | g | U ) | P | B

W,

Social Action Tnust Fund fS.ﬁTFJ
Tamama P-r‘ii'-ra-tt Sactor F-:urrdatmn (TPEF)

-
=

Tarzania Higher Learning Institutions Students' Organization (TAHLISO) ==

Contraller and Auditor General
ARMPAHESLE/2023/24
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